IIIHIHI!HIHlli“i"lli“lHliUlIlNlH!HHH

021472

PROCESSED
ﬂ\PR 01 200

TREVSON
Al




Tule of Comients

Preside

/r,.':cm g

//Mf’u i

i /ﬂ»“\\ A AREIS 4

©E, e

Marker ,l\?[fzf ¢

8 SYC Seileniens

fladi e

Setecied 1

ET
PUREMmREnEs oo
Nowes jo DI

S
Repery aff diepien

icied Dversien

Gl W ES

rfe




Shown left to right: Jann Allen Weaver, Larry J. Miller and Harry R. Swift.




President’s Letter

to Cur Shareholders: Over the past decade, the competitive landscape for American businesses has
changed dramatically. Most of the changes were due to: regulatory mandates, consolidation, or questionable
corporate behavior. While financial services institutions have emerged relatively unscathed from
inappropriate corporate activities, the actions of Enron, WorldCom and Adelphia, to name a few,
provided the impetus for the federal government, stock exchanges and others to create a myriad of
additional regulatory, reporting and governance oversight directives for all public companies.
Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. is a member of the NASDAQ National Market System (trading under
the symbol CVLY), and, therefore, is subject to the same regulatory scrutiny as Microsoft, Intel or
SunTrust. Cbviously, a vast majority of businesses are operating ethically, and yet, they too, must
bear the burden of more costly supervision.

Consolidation and diversification of the financial services industry have taken on new vigor as
companies attempt to provide “one-stop-shopping” and develop a global marketplace presence.
Two of the top ten banking companies operating in the United States are foreign owned (Taunus and
ABN Amro), and all of these entities have non-commercial banking business lines that contribute
substantially to their respective financial performance. While Codorus Valley’s past and present
strategic plans do not include global aspirations, they clearly include a focus on providing our
clients more than a checking account or a loan for a new automobile.

During 2003, Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. continued the execution of its strategic plan with
the following financial accomplishments:

o total assets grew 6.5 percent, rising to $372.5 million at December 31, 2003;

net income for the year was $3.4 million, up 10.7 percent from 2002;

° non-interest income totaled over $4.3 million, up 24 percent from a year ago;

o total assets under managerment in the Trust and Investment Services Division ended the year at
$92.3 million, up over 14 percent, with income derived from this Division up almost 12 per
cent during the same period;

o the level of capital exceeded all regulatory capital requirements at December 31, 2003 and
ended the year at $33.8 million; and

o finally, Codorus Valley’s common stock price closed at $20.90 per share at December 31, 2003,
an increase of $6.40 per share, or 44 percent more than the closing price (as adjusted) at
December 31, 2002.

Further information on Codorus Valley’s financial performance is included in this Annual

Report.

The results for 2003 are most gratifying and reflect Codorus Valley’s commitment to serving the
needs of our community, the dedication of our employees and business associates, and the ongoing
fulfillment of our strategic plan. Income from sources other than traditional banking continues
to increase as a means of adding revenue without a related capital investment. Over the past five
years, non-interest income at Codorus Valley, as a percentage of total net revenue, grew from
14.8 percent to 24.3 percent, an increase of 64 percent. This increase was due to the financial
contributions of the Trust and Investment Services Division, Mortgage Banking Division, and

subsidiaries of PeoplesBank (the financial services subsidiary of Codorus Valley):

SYC Settiement Services, SYC Insurance Services and Market Street Financial Services.




These entities provide wealth management; financial and estate planning; life, accident & health
and Jong-term care insurances; investments; title insurance; mutual funds; annuities and mortgage
loans to Codorus Valley’s clients.

Going forward, Codorus Valley plans to expand its focus on small to mid-sized businesses while
continuing to serve its growing retail client base. Lending to small to mid-sized businesses, which has
been a mainstay for Codorus Valley for many years, will be intensified and ancillary services and
products will be added and targeted toward this market.

Codorus Valley remains committed to our community and provides both leadership and financial
resources to activities for the public good. Over the past eighteen months, Director Reed Anderson
served as co-Chair of the YorkCounts Commission, a community-wide effort endorsed and support-
ed by the York County Board of Commissioners. The purpose of YorkCounts is to define, measure
and develop a comprehensive action
plan to improve the quality of life in
York County. Through a 14-member
Steering Committee. it was determined

that three primary areas of public need

would be addressed: education, commu-
nity development and economic
development. I am honored to have
served as the Chair of the Economic
Development Task Force.

Recently, the YorkCounts
Commission distributed its blueprint
for change in York County. The plan
is entitled Charring a Brighter Future e gr OWiilg
Jor All, The Time is Now. The plan ‘
details thirty actionable “ready

solutions” that, upon implementation,

individually or collectively, will have

a positive impact on where we live and work. Director Anderson and his fellow co-chair, Ernie
Waters, deserve our sincere thanks and recognition for their clarity of purpose and dedication to
the YorkCounts Commission. Their untiring leadership has motivated scores of our neighbors and
friends to become collaborators in the development of a plan to strengthen our community, and
improve our quality of life.

The mission of Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc is to create long-term shareholder value and
improve the guality of life in the communities we serve, by providing diversified financial services to
small and mid-sized businesses and individual consumers in York and adjacent counties. Through
your continued investment and support, we will fuifill this mission. Thank you for your confidence

in Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc.

Larry J. Miller
President and Chief Executive Officer




PeoplesBank

A Codorus Valley Company
Executive Officers and
Leadership Group

Larry J. Miller
President and Chief Executive Officer

Harry R. Swift, Esquire
Executive Vice President, Cashies,
and General Counsel

Jann Allen Weaver, CPA
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Matthew A. Clemens, SPHR

Senior Vice President, Human Resources Division

David J. Cover, CRSP
Seniar Vice President, Trust and
Investment Services Division

Kent A. Ketterman
Senior Vice President, Business Banking Division

Todd A. Tyson
Senior Vice President, Retail Sales and
Service Division

Scott T. Weaver
Senior Vice President, Administrative
Services Division

Diane E. Hill, CPA

Vice President and Auditor

Cheryl L. Keener, CFMP
Vice President, Marketing Division

Angela F. Kern, CISSP

Vice President, Information Technology Division

Linda D. Senft, CRCM
Vice President, Compliance and Security

Keith L. Sheffer
Vice President, Mortgage Banking Division

William H. Thompson, CLU, CHFC
Executive Vice President,
SYC Insurance Services, Inc.

PeoplesBank

A Codorus Valley Company
Advisory Committee
Members

Cindy E. Baugher

President — Baugher Motors. Inc.

Keith R. Brown
President — Phoenix Health Care, Inc.
dba Dallastown Nursing Center

Evans N. Fishel

President — H. Norman Fishel & Son, Inc.

William W. Gemmill, Jr.
Owner — W. W. Gemmill Plumbing,
Heating & Air Conditioning

Richard E. Hopper

Business and Property Management

Richard D. Hupper. Ed. D.
Retired Educator

Samuel E. Keeney
President — Sam Keeney Organ
and Piano Center, Inc.

Donald L. Kern
President — K & M Home Center, Inc.

Thomas W. King, CPA
President - King & King. PC

Claude W. Rohrbaugh

President — B & R Electrical Contractors. Inc.

Alan J. Yost
Owner — Yost Farms

FPeoplesBank
A Codorus Valley Company

Bank Officers and Managers

Barbara J. Myers

Corporate Secretary

Peggy S. Warner

Assistant Secretary and Retail Services Officer

Joseph V. Angelo
Vice President - Business Banking

Stephen T. Sherman
Vice President - Business Banking

John S. Eaton, Jr.

Assistant Vice President - Business Banking

Kelly L. Rosenzweig

Assistant Vice President and Assistant Controller

Timothy S. Wise
Assistant Vice President - Administrative Services

Gregg A. Elicker

Assistant Vice President - Automated Services

J. Matthew Muir
Business Banking Officer

Wanda M. Chilcoat
Trust Officer

Phyllis A. Crumley
Retail Services Officer

Christina M. Gingerich
Settlement Officer - Credit Services

Cindy L. Hollingshead
Staff Auditor

Donna A. Massa
Training Officer

Steven E. Miller
Loan Review Officer

Amy L. Richmond

Commercial Credit Review Officer

Stacy L. Doss
Manager, Client Care Center

Debra A. Messersmith
Manager. Floating Teller Pool

Christine A. Myers
Manager - Deposit Services




Boards of Directors
Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc.

and PeoplesBank

George A. Trout, D.D.S.

Chairman — Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc.
Retired Dentist

Rodney L. Krebs
Chairman — PeoplesBank
President — Springfield Contractors, Inc.

Larry J. Miller

President and Chief Fxecutive Officer
Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. and
PEOPLESBANK

D. Reed Anderson, Esquire
Stock and Leader
Attorneys at Law

M. Carol Druck
Realtor - Morgan Collins Realtors, Inc.
President — Druck Realty, Inc.

MacGregor S. Jones
Retired Automobile Dealer

Dallas L. Smith
President — Bruce V. Smith, Inc.

Donald H. Warner

President — Warners Motor Express, Inc.

Hon. Michael L. Waugh
28th Senatorial District
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Directors Emeritus - PeoplesBank
William U, Kapp

Barry A. Keller

Bernard F. Young

(4 e m\ » . B A”i | . .
As directors, wearescommitted®o building and

deepening relationships with our <

Shown left to right: Donald H Warner, M. Carol Druck, MacGregor S. Jones, Rodney L. Krebs. Larry J. Miller,
George A.Trout, D.D.S., Michael L. Waugh, Dallas L. Smith, and D.Reed Anderson, Esquire.




PeopiesBank

A Codorus Valley Company
Office Locations

Financial Centers

Cape Horn*

2587 Cape Horn Road

Red Lion, PA 17356-9057
Deborah L. Gallup, Manager

City of York*

118 East Market Street

York, PA 17401-1219

James W. Coombes, Manager

Joshua P. Stambaugh, Assistant Manager

221 West Philadelphia Street

York, PA 17404-2992

James W. Coombes, Manager
Sabrina M. Fissel, Assistant Manager

Zast York*

2701 Eastern Boulevard

York, PA 17402-2907

Carol A. Gross, Manager

Robin P. Underwood, Assistant Manager

Glen Rock™

1 Manchester Street, P. O. Box 67
Glen Rock, PA 17327-0067

Connie L. Kiser, Manager

Phyllis E. Eckersley, Assistanr Manager

Jacobus

1 North Main Street, P. 0. Box 176
Jacobus, PA 17407-0176

Barbara J. Wilson, Manager
Roseann E. Nix, Assistant Manager

Jefferson™

6 Baltimore Street, P. . Box 127
Codorus, PA 17311-0127
Melissa S. Perkins, Manager

[eader Heights*

109 Leader Heights Road

York, PA 17403-5137

Rebecca D. Gore, Manager

L. Charlene Boring, Assistant Manager

South Hanover*

1400 Baltimore Street

Hanover, PA 17331-8528
Christopher M. Aulbach, Manager

Stewartstown*

2 Ballast Lane, B. O. Box 925
Stewartstown, PA 17363-0925

Terry R. Kernan, Manager

Patricia A. Valentin, Assistant Manager

York New Salem*

320 North Main Street, P. O. Box 278
York New Salem, PA 17371-0278
Algard P. Shaffer, Manager

*24-hour ATM. Additional ATM
locations: The Farmers Market

of Shrewsbury, Central Market House in
Downtown York, Loyal Order of Moose,
Lodge #148 (Cape Horn Road).

To contact any financial center location,
please call our Client Care Center
at 717-846-1970 or 1-888-846-1970.

Corporate Offices

Market Street Financial Services

SYC Insurance Services, Inc.

SYC Settlement Services, Inc.

Trust and [nvestment Services Division
Codorus Valley Corporate Center

105 Leader Heights Road

York, PA 17403-5137

Call our Client Care Center at
717-846-1970 or 1-888-846-1970;
or visit our website,
www.peoplesbanknet.com

Electronic Access
Internet Banking, Online Bill Payment
www.peoplesbanknet.com

ProNscos,
24-hour Telephone Banking
717-747-1555 or 1-888-767-1555




SYC Insurance Services, Inc.
Officers

Harry R. Swift, Esquire

President

William H. Thompson, CLU, CHFC

Executive Vice President

Larry J. Miller

Vice President and Secretary

Jann Allen Weaver, CPA

Treasurer and Assistant Secretary

Todd A. Tyson

Vice President

Linda D. Senft

Vice President and Assistanr Secretary

Peggy S. Warner

Assistant Secretary

Market Street Financial
Services
Licensed Agents

William H. Thompson, CLU, CHFC
Nancy A, Thompson, LUTCF, CLTC
Richard B. Shuster

David J. Garber

Jason R, Weber

what we do best.”

Shown left to right: Kent A.Kerterman and Todd A.Tyson.

SYC Sertiement
Services, Inc.
Officers

Harry R. Swift, Esquire
President

Larry J. Miller
Vice President and Secretary

Jann Allen Weaver, CPA
Treasurer and Assistant Secretary

Scott T. Weaver
Vice President
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Selected Financial Data

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Summary of operations ‘
(in thousands)
Total interest income $19,964 $20,674 $22.602 $21,904 $20,314
Total interest expense 6,898 8,907 10,871 11,064 9,534
Net interest income 13,066 - 11,767 11,731 10,840 10,780
Provision for loan losses 553 . 515 143 119 225
Noninterest income ' 4,380 3,534 2,496 2,164 2,110
Noninterest expense 12,290 11,008 10,298 9,124 8,927
Income before income taxes 4,603 3,778 3,786 3,761 3,738
Provision for income taxes 1171 677 932 1,054 1,074
Net income $ 3432 §$ 3101 $ 2.854 $ 2,707 $ 2,664
Ratios
(in percentages)
Return on average shareholders' equity 10.3% 10.1% 10.0% 10.3% 10.2%
Return on average assets 8.96 0.91 0.91 0.94 0.95
Tier I risk-based capital 111 11.3 10.9 113 11.2
Total risk-based capital Ty 1 Ny A 119 11.6 12.1 12.1
Average shareholders' equity to average assets - 83 9.0 9.1 9.1 93
Per common share :
(adjusted for stock dividends)
Net income, basic ‘ $ 1.21 $ 1.10 $1.01 $0.97 $0.94
Net income, diluted $ 1.206 $ 1.09 $ 1.01 $0.97 $0.94
Cash dividends paid $ 047 $ 045 $ 043 $0.39 $0.34
Stock dividend paid L 8% 5% 5% 5% 5%
Book value $11.91 - $11.38 $10.38 $9.70 $9.16
Cash dividend payout ratio 3879% 40.7% 42.1% 40.7% 38.0%
Weighted average shares outstanding 2,833,242 2,828,029 2,825,804 2,799,946 2,825,675
Summary of financial condition at year-end
(in thousands) ‘
Securities, available-for-sale - $62,738 © $ 68863 $ 37436 $ 37335 $ 43,031
Securities, held-to-maturity S 9355 9,357 9,358 9,360 9,361
Loans held for sale . 2157 4,586 12,349 0 0
Loans 269,206 233,960 225,785 217,926 207,318
Assets 372,547 349,897 330,455 295,092 291,156
Deposits 304,282 . 292,627 276,945 247414 238,458
Borrowings ' 31,234 - 23,253 19,573 19,034 25,999
Equity 33,789 - 32,223 29,368 27,391 25,372
Other data s ,
Number of bank offices 1 11 10 8 8
Number of employees (full-time equivalent) G . 143 163 152 136 131
Trust and investment services
(in thousands) ST
Assets under management (market value) L $92,312 ¢ $80,780 $78,203 $79,850 $76,838
Fee income e 4B - 758 678 670 542




Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

December 31,

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2003 20062
Assets
Interest bearing deposits with banks $ 108 $ 242
Cash and due from banks 12,300 10,878

Total cash and cash equivalents 12,408 11,120
Securities, available-for-sale 62,738 68,863
Securities, held-to-maturity (fair value $10,223 for 2003 and $9,539 for 2002) 9,355 9,357
Restricted investment in bank stock, at cost 1,976 1,503
Loans held for sale 2,157 4,586
Loans (net of deferred fees of $610 in 2003 and $645 in 2002) 260,206 233,960
Less-allowance for loan losses (1,694) (1,515)

Net loans 258,512 232,445
Premises and equipment 9,358 9,335
Other assets 16,043 12,688

Total assets $372,547 $349,897
Liabilities
Deposits

Noninterest bearing $ 33,188 $ 30,120
Interest bearing 271,094 262,507

Total deposits 304,282 292,627
Short-term borrowings 6,795 7,089
Long-term debt ) 24,439 16,164
Other liabilities 3,242 1,794

Total liabilities 338,758 317,674

Shareholders' equity
Preferred stock, par value $2.50 per share;

1,000,000 shares authorized; 0 shares issued and outstanding 0 0
Common stock, par value $2.50 per share;

10,000,000 shares authorized; 2,837,634 shares issued

and outstanding for 2003 and 2,697,035 for 2002 7,094 6,743
Additionat paid-in capital 17,451 15,549
Retained earnings 8,498 8,551
Accumulated other comprehensive income 746 1,380

Total shareholders' equity 33,789 32,223
Totatl liabilities and shareholders’ equity $372,547 $349,897

See accompanying notes.




Consolidated Statements of Income

Years ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2003 - 2002 2001
Interest income
Loans, including fees $16,920 $17,231 $19,013
Investment securities
Taxable 2,506 2,655 2,348
Tax-exempt 430 522 546
Dividends 35 37 120
Other 64 229 575
Total interest income - 19,964 - 20,674 22,602
Imterest expense ‘
Deposits 5821 7,698 9,704
Federal funds purchased and other short-term borrowings 19 10 7
Long-term debt - 1,058 - 1,199 1,160
Total interest expense 6,898 8,907 10,871
Net interest income - 13,066 11,767 11,731
Provision for loan losses 553 515 143
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 12,513 11,252 11,588

Noninterest income

Trust and investment services fees 848 758 678
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,155 792 705
Mutual fund, annuity and insurance sales 685 272 193
Income from bank owned life insurance 318 325 294
Other income 401 436 467
Gain on sales of securities 266 179 0
Gain on sales of mortgages, net of unrealized losses 767 772 159
Total noninterest income 4,380 3,534 2,496
Noninterest expense ‘
Personnel - 6,558 6,005 5,281
Occupancy of premises, net : 9%6 808 832
Furniture and equipment 1,152 1,072 1,083
Postage, stationery and supplies ' c 427 410 395
Professional and legal 471 226 306
Marketing and advertising KA 432 414
Foreclosed real estate, net 49 71 239
Other 2,267 1,984 1,748
Total noninterest expense EZ,Z% 11,008 10,298
Income before income taxes - 4,603 3,778 3,786
Provision for income taxes 1,171 677 932
Net income $ 3432 $ 3,101 $ 2.854
Net income per share, basic , $1.21 $1.10 $1.01
Net income per share, diluted $1.20 $1.09 $1.01

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $ 3,432 $ 3,101 $ 2,854

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operations:
Depreciation 986 958 945
Provision for loan losses 553 515 143
Provision for losses on foreclosed real estate 55 30 62
"Deferred federal income tax benefit (expense) 119 (614) ®
Amortization of investment in real estate partnership 203 777 0
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance investment (318) (325) (294)
Originations of held for sale mortgages (65,339) (54,488) (21,510)
Proceeds from sales of held for sale mortgages 68,475 63,023 9,320
Gain on sales of held for sale mortgages (707) (772) (218)
Unrealized loss on held for sale mortgages 0 0 59
Gain on sales of securities (266) (179) 0
Gain on sales of foreclosed real estate (126) (58) (89)
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable 165 (116) 176
Decrease (increase) in other assets 392 (552) (183)
Decrease in accrued interest payable (114) (163) (101)
Increase in other liabilities 160 200 322
Other, net 621 684 194

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 8,291 12,021 (8,328)

Cash flows from investing activities
Securities, available-for-sale

Purchases (31,300) (68,284) (14,606)
Maturities and calls 22,660 23,704 14,944
Sales 13,542 14,311 0
Net (increase) decrease in restricted investment in bank stock 473) 577 2,311
Net increase in loans made to customers (28,220) (9,615) (9,285)
Purchases of premises and equipment (1,017) (899) (746)
Investment in real estate partnership (1,243) (2,982) 0
Investment in life insurance )] (306) 0
Purchase of assets of insurance agency 25) (125) 0
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed real estate 776 674 2,765
Net cash used in investing activities (25,307) (44,099) 4,617)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in demand and savings deposits 12,964 20,671 11,675
Net (decrease) increase in time deposits (1,309) (4,989) 17,856
Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowings (294) 7,089 0
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 10,000 0 2,000
Repayment of long-term debt 1,725) (3,409) (2,110)
Dividends paid (1,327) (1,262) (1,201)
Issuance of common stock 0 67 27
Cash paid in lieu of fractional shares 5) 4 @
Net cash provided by financing activities 18,304 18,163 28,243
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,288 (13,915) 15,298
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,120 25,035 9,737
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $12,408 $11,120 $25,035
Supplemental disclosures
Interest paid on deposits and borrowed funds $7,012 $9,070 $10,952
Income taxes paid $650 $725 $1,099

See accompanying notes.




Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Treasury
(dollars in thousands, except per share data) Stock Capital Earnings Income Stock Total
Balance, December 31, 2000 $6.137 $12,447 $8,844 $ 126 $(163) $27,391
Comprehensive income
Net income 2,854 2,854
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gains on securities 301 301
Total comprehensive income 3,155
Cash dividends ($.43 per share) (1,201) (1,201)
5% stock dividend - 121,738 shares at fair value 268 1,535 (1,970) 163 @
Issuance of common stock under stock option plan 6 22 @9 27
Balance, December 31, 2001 6,411 14,004 8,526 427 0 29,368
Comprehensive income
Net income 3,101 3,101
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gains on securities
net of reclassification adjustment for gains included .
in net income 953 953
Total comprehensive income 4,054
Cash dividends ($.45 per share) (1,262) (1,262)
5% stock dividend - 127,927 shares at fair value 320 1,490 (1,814) @
Issuance of common stock under dividend reinvestment plan 6 33 39
Issuance of common stock under stock option plan 6 22 28
Balance, December 31, 2002 6,743 15,549 8,551 1,380 0 32,223
Comprehensive income . , . . . S ol
Net income 3,432 3,432
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized losses on securities -
net of reclassification adjustment for gains included .. ... . . e
in net incoriie o - (634 ’ _ (634)
Total comprehensive income 2,798
Cash dividends ($.47 per share) (1,327) ’ (1,327
5% stock dividend - 134,564 shares at fair value 336 1,817 (2,158) {5
Issuance of common stock for insurance agency purchase 15 85 100
Balance, December 31, 2003 $7,094 $17.451 $8,498 $ 746 $ © $33,789

See accompanying notes.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. (Corporation or Codorus Valley) is a one-bank holding company headquartered in York, Pennsylvania
that provides a full range of banking services through its subsidiary, PeoplesBank, A Codorus Valley Company (PeoplesBank).
PeoplesBank operates two wholly owned subsidiaries, SYC Insurance Services, Inc. that sells nondeposit investment products and
SYC Settlement Services, Inc., which provides real estate settlement services. PeoplesBank operates under a state charter subject to
regulation by the Pennsylvania Department of Banking and by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

The consolidated financial statements inciude the accounts of Codorus Valley and its wholly owned bank subsidiary, PeoplesBank,
and its wholly owned nonbank subsidiary, SYC Realty Company, Inc. All significant intercompany account balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. The accounting and reporting policies of Codorus Valley and subsidiaries conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have been followed on a consistent basis.

Investment Securities

The classification of securities is determined at the time of acquisition and is reevaluated at each reporting date. Securities classified
as available-for-sale are debt securities that the Corporation intends to hold for an indefinite period of time, but not necessarily to
maturity. Any decision to sell a security classified as available-for-sale would be based on various factors, including significant
movements in interest rates, changes in maturity mix of assets and liabilities, liquidity needs, regulatory considerations and other
factors. Securities available-for-sale are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of taxes, reported as a component
of accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders' equity. Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using
the interest method over the estimated life of the securities. Realized gains and losses from the sale of available-for-sale securities are
computed on the basis of specific identification of the adjusted cost of each security and are shown net as a separate line item in the
statement of income.

Securities classified as held-to-maturity are those debt securities that the Corporation has both the intent and ability to hold to maturity
regardless of changes in market conditions, liquidity needs or general economic conditions. These securities are carried at cost
adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of discount, computed by the interest method over the estimated life of the
securities.

Declines in the fair value of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities below cost that are deemed to be other than temporary
are reflected in earnings as realized losses. In estimating other than temporary impairment losses, management considers independent
price quotations, projected target prices of investment analysts within the short term and the financial condition of the issuer.

Restricted Stock
Federal law requires a member institution of the Federal Home Loan Bank to hold stock of its district FHLB according to a
predetermined formula. The stock is carried at cost.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are reported at the lower of cost or fair value, as determined in the aggregate. The amount, by which cost exceeds
fair value, if any, is accounted for as a valuation allowance and is charged to expense in the period of the change.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

An asset is recognized for mortgage servicing rights acquired through purchase or origination. Amounts capitalized are amortized in
proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net servicing income. If mortgage loans are sold or securitized with servicing retained,
the total cost of the mortgage loans is allocated to loans and the servicing rights based on their relative fair values. Loans serviced for
others were $3,798,000 at December 31, 2003, $7,611,000 at December 31, 2002, and $12,005,000 at December 31, 2001. Related
servicing rights were $26,000 at December 31, 2003, $52,000 at December 31, 2002, and $83,000 at December 31, 2001.

Loans

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are stated at
their outstanding unpaid principal balances, net of any deferred fees and costs. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal
balance. Loan origination fees and costs are generally deferred and recognized as adjustments of interest rate yields, by being
amortized to interest income over the terms of the related loans. Determination of loans past due status is based on contractual terms.
When circumstances indicate that collection of a loan is doubtful, the accrual of interest income is discontinued, and unpaid interest
previously credited to income is reversed and charged against current income. Loans are returned to accrual status when management
determines that circumstances have improved to the extent that both principal and interest are deemed collectible.
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NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to
earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed.
Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for losses that can be reasonably anticipated.
Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on current economic conditions, prior loss experience,
adequacy of collateral, risk characteristics of the loan portfolio and other relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as
it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The specific component relates to loans that are classified
as doubtful, substandard or special mention. For such loans that are also classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the
discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower that the carrying value of that loan.
The general component covers non-classified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors. An
unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management’s estimate of probable losses. The
unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the
methodologies for estimating specific general losses in the portfolio.

Aloan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that PeoplesBank will be unable to collect
all amounts due according to contractual terms of the loan agreement. An insignificant delay or shortfall in the amount of payments
would not cause a loan to be rendered impaired. Impairment is measured on an individual loan basis for business loans by either the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, the loan's observable market price or the fair
value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Large groups of smailer balance homogeneous loans are collectively
evaluated for impairment using loss factors derived in part from historical charge-offs. Income on impaired loans is recognized under
the same policy as disclosed under Loans.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred
assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Corporation, (2) the transferee obtains the right
(free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the
Corporation does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their
maturity.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense is calculated principally on the
straight-line method over the assets estimated useful lives. FEstimated useful lives are ten to forty years for buildings and
improvements, five to ten years for furniture and equipment and three to five years for computer equipment and software.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. The cost of significant improvements to existing assets is capitalized.
When facilities are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost is removed from the asset accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in
the statement of income.

Foreclpsed Real Estate

Foreclosed real estate, included in other assets, is comprised of property acquired through a foreclosure proceeding, acceptance of a
deed-in-licu of foreclosure, or insubstance foreclosures. Foreclosed real estate is initially recorded at fair value at the date of
foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Appraisals are generally used to determine fair value. After foreclosure, management
reviews valuations quarterly and the asset is carried at the lower of cost or fair value minus estimated costs to sell. Costs related to
the improvement of foreclosed real estate are generally capitalized until the real estate reaches a saleable condition. Revenue and
expense from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are included in expense. When a foreclosed real estate asset is
ultimately sold, any gain or loss on the sale is included in the income statement as a component of foreclosed real estate expense.

Investments in Real Estate Partnerships

In March 2003, PeoplesBank acquired a 73.47 percent limited partner interest in a real estate joint venture to develop, construct, own
and operate a 60-unit affordable housing complex for rental to families, to be known as Village Court, located in Dover Township,
York County, Pennsylvania. Management expects this project to be completed in the latter half of 2004 based on a projection provided
by Creating Affordable Housing, Inc., the general partner. At December 31, 2003, an investment balance of $2,770,000 was included
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

in other assets and an investment payable of $1,527,000 was included in other liabilities. Additionally, PeoplesBank is a 99.99 percent
limited partner in a real estate joint venture that rehabilitated and now operates seven buildings in the City of York (Pennsylvania) as
part of a revitalization initiative. An affiliate of the YMCA of York holds the remaining partnership interest. The buildings provide
low-income housing to qualified families and to a lesser degree, space for commercial purposes. The investment balance, recorded in
other assets, was $2,002,000 at December 31, 2003, compared to $2,205,000 at December 31, 2002.

Investment and related tax credits are accounted for under the effective yield method of accounting whereby tax credits are recognized
as they are allocated and the cost of the investment is amortized to provide a constant yield over the period that tax credits are allocated.

Bank Owned Life Insurance

PeoplesBank invests in bank owned life insurance (BOLI) as a source of funding for employee benefit expenses. BOLI involves the
purchasing of life insurance by PeoplesBank on a chosen group of employees and directors. PeoplesBank is the owner and beneficiary
of the policies. This life insurance investment is carried at the cash surrender value of the underlying policies and is included in other
assets in the amount of $7,051,000 at December 31, 2003, compared to $6,726,000 at December 31, 2002. Income from the increase
in cash surrender value of the policies is a separate line item within the noninterest income section of the income statement.

Trust and Investment Services Assets
Assets held by PeoplesBank in a fiduciary or agency capacity for its customers are not included in the consolidated statements of
financial condition since these items are not assets of PeoplesBank.

Advertising
Advertising costs are charged to expense when incurred.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided on the liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary
differences and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences
between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance,
when in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the provision for income taxes for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates
on the effective date.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to 11ake
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the
determination of the allowance for loan losses.

Per Share Data

Basic earnings per share rey ‘esent income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding, adjusted for stock
dividends, was 2,833,242 for 2003, 2,828,029 for 2002 and 2,825,804 for 2001. Diluted earnings per share reflect additional common
shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued as well as any adjustments to income
that would result from the presumed issuance. Potential common shares that may be issued by the Corporation relate solely to
outstanding stock options, and are determined using the treasury stock method. The weighted average number of dilutive shares was
32,283 for 2003, 12,183 for 2002 and 9,608 for 2001. Anti-dilutive options excluded from the computation of earnings per share were
35,742 for 2003, 94,031 for 2002, and 123,786 for 2001. All per share amounts have been adjusted for stock dividends.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock options issued under shareholder approved employee and director stock option plans are accounted for under Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB 25). Stock options are granted at exercise prices
not less than the fair value of the common stock on the date of grant. Under APB 25, no compensation expense is recognized related
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NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cond)

to these plans. The pro forma impact on net income and earnings per share that would occur if compensation expense were recognized
based on the estimated fair value of the options on the date of the grant is as follows:

Years ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands, except per share data) - 2003 - 2002 2001
Reported net income $3.432  $3,101 $2,854
Deduct total stock-based employee compensation expense :
determined under fair value based method for all awards,

net of related tax effects 22 160 115
Pro forma net income 834100 $2.941 $2,739
Reported basic earnings per share $121. $1.10 $ 1.01
Reported diluted earnings per share $ 1.20 $ 1.09 $ 1.01
Pro forma basic earnings per share ' $1.20 $ 1.04 $ 0.97
Pro forma diluted earnings per share $ 1.19 $ 1.04 $ 0.97

The grant-date fair value of options granted, adjusted for stock dividends, was $6.29 for 2002 and $6.14 for 2001. There were no
options granted in 2003. The 2002 and 2001 values were calculated using the Black-Scholes option valuation model. The follow-
ing significant assumptions were used: -

2002 2001
Expected life (in years) 5.25 6.21
Risk free interest rate 4.52% 4.88%
Expected volatility 56.9% 59.1%
Expected dividend yield 3.2% 3.2%

Cash Flow Information
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Corporation considers interest bearing deposits with banks, cash and due from banks,
and federal funds sold to be cash and cash equivalents.

Noncash items for the year ended December 31, 2003, included a feal estate partnership investment commitment for $1,527,000 and
the transfer of loans to foreclosed real estate for $1,569,000. Noncash items for the year ended December 31, 2002, consisted of the
transfer of loans to foreclosed real estate for $356,000. Noncash items for the year ended December 31, 2001, included a real estate
partnership investment commitment for $2,982,000, an asset acquired under a capital lease for $672,000, and the transfer of loans to
foreclosed real estate for $1,346,000.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation has entered into off-balance sheet financial instruments consisting of commitments
to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These financial instruments are recorded on the balance sheet when they become payable
by the borrower to the Corporation.

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net income. Although
certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, are reported as a separate
component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income.
The components of other comprehensive income and related tax effects are presented in the following table:

) _v‘_f{ge_ﬁmj_s;ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Unrealized holding (losses) gains arising during the year $(695) °  $1,621 $458
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in income - - (266) (179) 0
Net unrealized (losses) gains (861) - 1,442 458
Tax effect 327 489)  (157)
Net of tax amount $(634) $ 953 $301
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NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Segment Reporting
Management has determined that it operates in only one segment, community banking. The Corporation’s non-banking activities are
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.

Treasury Stock
The acquisition of treasury stock is recorded under the cost method. The subsequent disposition or sale of the treasury stock is
recorded using the average cost method.

Reclassifications
Certain amounts in the 2002 and 2001 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2003 presentation format. These
reclassifications had no impact on the Corporation’s net income.

Recemntly issued FASB Statements

In May 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 150 (Statement), “Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity.” This Statement requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument
that is within its scope as a liability. Many of these instruments were previously classified as equity. This Statement was effective for
financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003 and otherwise was effective beginning July 1, 2003. The adoption
of this Statement did not have any impact on the Corporation’s financial condition or results of operations.

In April 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (Board) issued Statement No. 149 (Statement), “Amendment of Statement
No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” This Statement clarifies the definition of a derivative and
incorporates certain decisions made by the Board as part of the Derivatives Implementation Group process. The Statement was
effective for contracts entered into or modified, and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003 and should be applied
prospectively. The provisions of the Statement that relate to implementation-issues addressed by the Derivatives Implementation
Group that have been effective should continue to be applied in accordance with their respective dates. Adoption of this Statement
did not have any impact on the Corporation’s financial condition or results of operations.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46), “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51.” FIN 46 was revised in December 2003. This interpretation provides new
guidance for the consolidation of variable interest entities (VIEs) and requires such entities to be consolidated by their primary
beneficiaries if the entities do not effectively disperse risk among parties involved. The interpretation also adds disclosure
requirements for investors that are involved with unconsolidated VIEs. The disclosure requirements apply to all financial statements
issued after December 31, 2003. The consolidation requirements apply to companies that have interests in special-purpose entities for
periods ending after December 15, 2003. Consolidation of other types of VIEs is required in financial statements for periods ending
after March 15, 2004. The adoption of FIN 46 did not have and is not expected to have a significant impact on the Corporation’s
financial condition or results of operations.

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), “Guarantor’s
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 expands
the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees and requires the
guarantor to recognize a liability for the fair value of an obligation assumed under certain specified guarantees. Under FIN 45, the
Corporation does not issue any guarantees that would require liability recognition or disclosure, other than its standby letters of credit,
as discussed in Note 15. Adoption of FIN 45 did not have a significant impact on the Corporation’s financial condition or results of
operations.

NOTE 2 - Restrictions on Cash and Due from Banks

.. Cash balances reserved to meet regulatory requirements of the Federal Reserve Bank and balances maintained at other banks for
. compensating balance requirements averaged approximately $3,925,000 for 2003 and $4,198,000 for 2002.




NOTE 3 - Securities Available-for-Sale and Held-to-Maturity

A summary of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities at December 31, follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
2003 : 5
Available-for-sale
Debt securities ; ‘
U.S. agencies - $45,355 $ 356 $(152)  $45,759
States and municipals - 8,617 656 0 9,273
Mortgage-backed securities : 7,636 183 33) 7,785
Total available-for-sale - $61,608 $1,315 $(185)  $62,738
Held-to-maturity: i
Debt securities-corporate trust preferreds ' § 9355 $ 916 $ 48)  $10.223
Total held-to-maturity 1 $9355  $ 916 $ (48)  $10,223
2042
Available-for-sale
Debt securities
U.S. treasuries $ 1,004 $ 16 $ 0 $ 1,020
U.S. agencies 35,087 1,015 0 36,102
States and municipals ’ 10,474 679 0 11,153
Mortgage-backed securities 20,207 381 0 20,588
Total available-for-sale $66,772 $2,091 $ 0 $68,863
Held-to-maturity
Debt securities-corporate trust preferreds $ 9,357 $ 445 $(263) $ 9,539
Total held-to-maturity $ 9,357 $ 445 $(263) $ 9,539

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2003, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Actual
maturities may differ from contractual maturities if call options on selected debt issues are exercised in the future. Mortgage-backed
securities are included in the maturity categories based on average expected life.

December 31, 2003

Amortized Fair
(dollars in thousands) Cost Value
Available-for-sale
Due in one year or less T8 IS8 8 7,225
Due after one year through five years . 46,983 47,486
Due after five years through ten years [T 6216 ; 6,632
Due after ten years L 1,294 1,395
Total debt securities, available-for-sale _ $61.608  $62.738:
Held-to-maturity e
Due after ten years . $ 9,355 $10,223

Gross gains realized from the sale of available-for-sale securities were $266,000, $179,000 and $0, for 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Securities with a carrying value of $18,226,000 and $21,057,000 on December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were
pledged to secure certain public and trust deposits.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTE 3 - Securities Available-for-Sale and Held-to-Maturity (cont’d)

The following table shows investments’ gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of time
that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2003.

Length of time in unrealized loss position

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
{(dollars in thousands) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Available-for-sale
U. S. agencies $14,998 $152 $ 0 $0 $14,998 $152
Mortgage-backed securities 929 .33 0 0 929 33
Total temporarily impaired debt
securities, available-for-sale $15.,927 $185 $ 0 $0 $15.927 $185
Held-to-maturity
Debt securities-corporate trust preferred $ 0 $ 0 $467 $48 $ 467 $ 48
Total temporarily impaired debt
securities, held-to-maturity $ 0 $ 0 $467 $48 $ 467 $ 48

The $185,000 unrealized loss (less than 12 months) within the available-for-sale category was attributable to thirteen different
securities. Management believes that the unrealized loss was the result of fluctuations in market interest rates subsequent to
acquisition, Management has the ability to hold these investments until the earlier of maturity or a market price recovery. The $48,000
unrealized loss (12 months or more) in the held-to-maturity category was attributable to a single trust preferred security, rated
investment grade and guaranteed by Royal Bank of Canada.

NOTE 4 - Loans

The composition of the loan portfolio at December 31, is as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002

Commercial, industrial and agricultural $163,676 $161,425

Real estate - construction and land development 28,147 20,596
Total commercial related loans 191,823 182,021

Real estate - residential mortgages 25,134 24,803

Installment 43,249 27,136
Total consumer related loans 68,383 51,939
Total loans $260,206 $233,960

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of customers are engaged in similar business activities in the same geographic region
or have similar economic features that could cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic conditions. Most of the Corporation's business is with customers in York County, Pennsylvania and northern Maryland.
Although this may pose a concentration risk geographically, we believe the diverse local economy and detailed knowledge about the
customer base minimizes this risk. At year-end 2003 and 2002, the total loan portfolio included two industry concentrations that
exceeded 10 percent. The commercial real estate leasing industry accounted for 11.8 and 15.7 percent, respectively of the total loan
portfolio, and the agricultural industry accounted for 10.3 and 8.5 percent, respectively of the total loan portfolio. Loans to borrowers
within these industries are usually collateralized by real estate.

Loans to directors, executive officers, principal shareholders, and any associates of such persons amounted to $3,434,000 at December
31, 2003, and $3,453,000 at December 31, 2002. During 2003, total loan additions amounted to $2,875,000 and total payments
collected amounted to $2,894,000. Related party loans are made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral,
as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated persons and do not involve more than normal risk of
collection. As of year-end 2003, all loans to this group were current and performing in accordance with contractual terms.




NOTE 5 - Impaired, Nonaccrual and Past Due Loans

Information regarding impaired commercial loans at December 31, was as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Impaired loans $4.006 $6,445 $2,199
Amount of impaired loans that have a related allowance 1,064 . 1,359 2,199
Allowance for impaired loans - 611 444 734
Average investment in impaired loans 5,352 5,869 2,650
Interest income recognized on impaired commercial loans 266 152 115

Impairment related to the above loans was measured based on fair values of collateral. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the loan
portfolio included total nonaccrual loans of $516,000 and $5,051,000, respectively. Interest that would have been included in income
had those loans been accruing at their contractual rates in 2003 was $34,000, compared with $36,000 that was recognized in income.
Loans contractually past due 90 days or more as to principal or interest, but still accruing interest totaled $49,000 at December 31,

2003 and $453,000 at December 31, 2002.

NOTE 6 - Analysis of Allowance for Loan Losses

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for each of the three years ended December 31, were as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Balance at beginning of year $1,515 $1,898 $1,967
Provision charged to operating expense 553 515 143
Loans charged off 776y (1,185) (232)
Recoveries 396 287 20
Balance at end of year $1,694 $1,515 $1,898
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NOTE 7 - Premises and Equipment

A summary of premises and equipment at December 31, was as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Land $1149 = $1,149
Buildings and improvements ’ . 8,746 8,481
Capitalized leased premises 672 672
Equipment 6,855 6,156
17,422 16,458
Less-accumulated depreciation (8,064) (7,123)

Net premises and equipment $9358 $9335

PeoplesBank leases certain banking branches under capital and noncancellable operating leases, which expire on various dates through
2016. The terms include various renewal options and provide for rental increases based upon predetermined factors. Total lease
expenses under operating leases amounted to $70,000 in 2003, $38,000 in 2002 and $22,000 in 2001. At December 31, 2003, future
minimum lease payments for these leases and a capital lease are payable as follows:

Capitai Operating

(dollars in thousands) Lease Leases
2004 $ 88 $ 66
2005 88 67
2006 94 67
2007 95 68
2008 95 70
Thereafter 701 225
Total future minimum lease payments 1,161 $563
Less-interest (524)

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 637

NOTE 8 - Deposits

The composition of deposits at December 31, was as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Noninterest bearing demand $ 33,188 $ 30,120
NOwW 40,552 34,851
Money market 75,529 73,938
Savings o 15,627 13,023
Time CDs less than $100,000 113,014 = 114,808
Time CDs $100,000 or more 26372 25887
Total deposits - $304,282 ¢ $292,627

Scheduled maturities of time deposits as of December 31, were as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2003
2004 $ 75,043
2005 30,804
2006 18,350 .
2007 11,016
2008 4,173
Total time deposits $139,386
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NOTE 9 - Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt

The schedule below provides a summary of short-term borrowings that consist of federal funds purchased and other borrowings.
Federal funds purchased from correspondent banks usually mature in one business day. Other short-term borrowings consist of credit
available through Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (FHL.BP). Based on the most recent analysis, total credit available from the
FHLRBP, for both short and long-term credit needs, is approximately $95 million. As of December 31, 2003, total unused credit with
the FHLBP was approximately $66 million. Obligations to the FHLBP are secured by FHLB stock and qualifying collateral,
principally the unpledged portion of PeoplesBank’s investment securities portfolio and qualifying mortgage loan receivables. The
interest rate for short-term borrowings reprices daily based on the federal funds rate or the open repo market depending on the
borrowing program. . :

A summary of aggregate short-term borrowings on December 31, is as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Amount outstanding at end of year $6,795 | $7,089 $0
Weighted average interest rate at end of year L L03% 1.31% 0.00%
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end $6,795 | $7,089 $3,000
Daily average amount outstanding - $1473 $591 $101
Approximate weighted average interest rate for the year 1.29% 1.69% 6.93%

A summary of long-term debt at December 31, is as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
PeoplesBank obligations to FHLBP ;
Due 2004, 5.12% $ 0 | $1025
Due 2005, 5.36%, convertible quarterly after :

December 2002 6880 | 6,000
Due 2007, 4.69%, amortizing L1256 1,636
Due 2009, 3.47%, convertible quarterly after !

December 2006 | 5,020 ; 0
Due 2013, 3.46%, amortizing L4753 0
Due 2014, 6.43%, convertible quarterly after -

July 2009 C 5860 5,000

Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. obligation |- S
Due 2009, 7.35%, amortizing | 1,793 1,848
' 23882 15,509
Capita] lease obligation ; 637 655
Total long-term debt $$24439 - $16,164

PeoplesBank’s obligations to FHLBP are fixed rate and fixed/floating (convertible) rate instruments. The FHLBP has an option on
the convertible borrowings to convert the rate to a floating rate after the expiration of a specified period. The floating rate is based on
the LIBOR index plus a spread. If the FHLBP elects to exercise its conversion option, PeoplesBank can repay the converted loan
without a prepayment penalty. The obligation of Codorus Valley is secured by a mortgage on the Codorus Valley Corporate Center
office building at 105 Leader Heights Road, York, Pennsylvania. In February 2004, this obligation was refinanced without interest
penalty. The new obligation is for approximately the same amount, matures in 2011 and has a floating rate based on the 1-month
LIBOR index plus 150 basis points. Total maturities of total long-term debt over the next five years are as follows: $916,000 in 2004,
$6,956,000 in 2005, $1,007.000 in 2006, $594.000 in 2007 and $621,000 in 2008.
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NOTE 10 - Shareholders' Equity

On April 8, 2003, the board of directors declared a 5 percent common stock dividend payable on or before June 5, 2003, to
shareholders of record on April 22, 2003. On April 9, 2002, the board of directors declared a 5 percent common stock dividend payable
on or before June 6, 2002, to shareholders of record on April 23, 2002. On April 10, 2001, the board of directors declared a 5 percent
common stock dividend payable on or before June 7, 2001, to shareholders of record on April 24, 2001.

Codorus Valley maintains a Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (Plan). Shareholders of common stock may participate
in the Plan, which allows additional shares of common stock to be purchased with reinvested dividends at prevailing market prices.
To the extent that shares are not available in the open market, 159,942 shares of common stock are reserved and available for issuance
at December 31, 2003. Under the Plan, no shares were issued in 2003, 2,642 shares were issued in 2002 and no shares were issued
in 2001. Open market purchases are usually made by an independent purchasing agent retained to act as agent for Plan participants,
and the purchase price to participants will be the actual price paid, excluding brokerage commissions and other expenses which will
be paid by the Corporation. The Plan also permits participants to make additional voluntary cash payments toward the purchase of
shares of the Corporation's common stock.

NOTE 11 - Regulatory Matters

The Corporation is subject to restrictions on the payment of dividends to its shareholders pursuant to the Pennsylvania Business
Corporation Law of 1988, as amended (BCL). The BCL prohibits dividend payments if such payment would render the Corporation
insolvent or result in negative net worth. Federal and state banking regulations place certain restrictions on dividends paid and loans
or advances made by PeoplesBank to the Corporation. The total amount of dividends, which may be paid at any date, is generally
limited to the retained earnings of PeoplesBank, and loans or advances are limited to 10 percent of PeoplesBank’s capital stock and
surplus on a secured basis. In addition, dividends paid by PeoplesBank to the Corporation would be prohibited if the effect thereof
would cause the Bank's capital to be reduced below applicable minimum capital requirements.

The Corporation and PeoplesBank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements. Failure to meet minimum capital
requirements can result in certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if imposed, could have a
material effect on the Corporation’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action, the Corporation and PeoplesBank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets,
liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and
classification are also subject to qualitative judgements by the regulators.

Quantitative measures established by regulators to ensure capital adequacy require the Corporation and PeoplesBank to maintain
minimum ratios, as set forth below, to total and tier 1 capital as a percentage of risk-weighted assets, and of tier 1 capital to average
assets (leverage ratio). Management believes that the Corporation and PeoplesBank were well capitalized on December 31, Z 703,
based on FDIC capital guidelines.

The FDIC’s minimum quantitative standards for a well capitalized institution are as follows: tier 1 risk-based capital ratio, 6 percent;
total risk-based capital ratio, 10 percent; and leverage ratio, 5 percent. The FDIC’s minimum quantitative standards for an adequately
capitalized institution are as follows: tier 1 risk-based capital ratio, 4 percent; total risk-based capital ratio, 8 percent; and leverage
ratio, 4 percent. At the state ">vel, the Pennsylvania Department of Banking uses a leverage ratio guideline of 6 percent. The following
table shows the Corporation and PeoplesBank’s actual and required ratios and capital amounts on December 31, 2003 and 2002.




NOTE 11 - Regulatory Matiers (cont’d)
Minimum for Well Capitalized
Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. Actual Capital Adequacy Minimum®*
(doilars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2003
Capital ratios
Tier 1 risk-based $32,702 11.13% > $11,751 24.0% n/a wa
Total risk-based 34,396 11.71 > 23,502 >89 n/a n/a
Leverage 32,702 9.15 > 14,292 240 wa n/a
December 31, 2002
Capital ratios
Tier 1 risk-based $30,475 11.32% > $10,770 >4.0% n/a n/a
Total risk-based 31,990 11.88 > 21,539 >8.0 nfa - n/a
Leverage 30,475 8.93 > 13,650 =40 n/a n/a
Minimum for Well Capitalized
PeoplesBank Actual Capital Adequacy Minimum™®
(dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2003
Capital ratios
Tier 1 risk-based $28,048 9.75% > $11,504 >40% =$17,256 > 6.0%
Total risk-based 20,742 16.34 2 23,008 288 >$28760 2100
Leverage . 28,048 799 > 14,043 249 2 17,554 2 50

December 31, 2002
Capital ratios

Tier 1 risk-based $25,946 9.86% > $10,521 240% 2815782 2 6.0%
Total risk-based 27,461 10.44 > 21,042 >8.0 > 26,303 >10.0
Leverage 25,946 7.75 2 13,390 =40 2 16,738 =350

* To be well capitalized under prompt correction action provisions.

NOTE 12 - Benefit Plans

Defined Contribution Plan

The Corporation maintains a 401(k) savings and investment plan covering substantially all employees. Under the plan, employees can
contribute a percentage of their gross salary. In 2003, 2002, and 2001, the Corporation matched 50 percent of the first 6 percent of an
employee's contribution. The Corporation's expense for the 401(k) savings and investment plan was $103,000 for 2003, $92,000 for
2002, and $77,000 for 2001.

Supplemental Benefit Plans

PeoplesBank maintains supplemental retirement plans for selected executives and supplemental life insurance for executive officers
and directors. The supplemental life insurance plans replaced other insurance coverage. The expense associated with these plans was
approximately $147,000 for 2003, $130,000 for 2002, and $118,000 for 2001. The accrued liability was $629,000 at December 31,
2003, and $482,000 at December 31, 2002. Investment in bank owned life insurance policies was used 1o finance the supplemental
benefit plans, and provide a tax-exempt return to PeoplesBank.

Employee Stock Bonus Plan

In 2001, the Corporation implemented an Employee Stock Bonus Plan, administered by nonemployee members of the Corporation’s
board of directors, under which the Corporation may issue shares of its common stock to employees as performance based
compensation. As of December 31, 2003, 10,796 shares of common stock were reserved for possible issuance under this plan, subject
to future adjustment in the event of specified changes in the Corporation’s capital structure. Under the Employee Stock Bonus Plan,
66 shares of stock were issued during 2003 and 152 shares of stock were issued during 2002.
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NOTE 13 - Stock Option Plans

The Corporation maintains three stock option plans as follows: a 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (2000 Plan), a 1998 Independent Directors
Stock Option Plan (1998 Plan) and a 1996 Stock Incentive Plan (1996 Plan). All options available for grant under the 1998 and 1996

Plans have been granted.

Shares reserved and available for issuance were 115,763 for the 2000 Plan, 122,997 for the 1998 Plan, and 92,012 for the 1996 Plan
at December 31, 2003. Shares reserved for future issuance under each plan are subject to adjustment in the event of specified changes
in the Corporation’s capital structure. Options awarded under these plans to date have been granted with an exercise price equal to
the fair value of the stock on the grant date, a vesting period of six months and an expiration period of ten years.

The 2000 Plan also allows for the granting of stock appreciation rights and restricted stock, none of which have been granted to date

at December 31, 2003.

A summary of stock options from all Plans, adjusted for stock dividends, is presented in the following table:

Years ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Avg. Exercise Avg. Exercise Avg, Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 201,337 $14.15 191,052 $14.07 170,824 $14.29
Granted - - 12,600 14.76 34,179 13.34
Exercised - - 2,315 10.37 2,315 10.37
Forfeited - - - - 11,636 15.90
Outstanding at end of year 201,337 $14.15 201,337 $14.15 191,052 $14.07
Information regarding options outstanding as of December 31, 2003, is presented in the following table:
Weighted Avg,
Remaining
Options Weighted Avg,  Contractual  Options Weighted Avg,
Qutstanding  Exercise Price Life Exercisable  Exercise Price
Options with exercise prices
ranging from $8.50 to $11.50 30,772 $10.26 4.5 years 30,772 $10.26
Options with exercise prices
ranging from $11.51 to $14.50 84,152 13.79 5.7 years 71,686 13.82
Options with exercise prices
ranging from $14.51 to $17.50 86,413 15.89 5.4 years 81,308 15.93
Total options outstanding with exercise prices
ranging from $8.50 to $17.50 201,337 $14.15 S4years 183,766 $14.16

26

@




NOTE 14 — Income Taxes

Significant components of the Corporation's deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, are as follows:

{dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losses ‘ $ 411 $ 351
Deferred compensation 214 164
Partnership investment amortization e 328 259
Tax credit carryforward ‘285 428
Total deferred tax assets 1,238 1,202
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred loan fees 120 82
Depreciation 330 259
Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities 384 711
Other, net 153 107
Total deferred tax liabilities 987 1,159
Net deferred tax asset $ 251 $ 43

Analysis of federal income taxes reflected in the income statements is as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 200L
Current tax provision - $1,052 $1,291 $940
Deferred tax benefit (provision) 119 (614) ()
Total tax provision $1,171 $ 677 $932

The reasons for the difference between the provision for income taxes and the amount computed by applying the statutory federal

income tax rate to income before income taxes are as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Income before income taxes $4,603 $3,778 $3,786
Computed tax at 34% . $1,565 $1,285 $1,287
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting from: - ‘

Tax-exempt interest income (157) (182) (190)
Interest expense disallowance 13 20 27
Tax-exempt income from bank owned life insurance (108) (110) (100)
Tax credits (155} (372) (99)
Other, net 13 36 7
Provision for income taxes $1,171 $ 677 $ 932

The provision for income taxes includes $90,000, $61,000 and $0 of applicable income tax expense related to net investment security
gains in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Based on current tax law, tax credits can be carried back one year and carried forward

twenty years.
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Notes to Consolidared Financial Statements
NOTE 15 — Commitments to Extend Credit

In the normal course of business, the Corporation is a party to various financial transactions that are not funded as of the balance sheet
date. Off-balance sheet financial instruments, which enable bank customers to meet their financing needs, are comprised mainly of
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Standby letters of credit written are conditional commitments issued by
PeoplesBank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. The credit and market risk involved in issuing letters of credit
is essentially the same as that involved in extending other loan commitments. To manage these risks the Corporation uses the same
credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments and requires collateral
to support these letters of credit as deemed necessary. Management believes that the proceeds obtained through a liquidation of such
collateral would be sufficient to cover the maximum potential amount of future payments required under the corresponding
guarantees. The current amount of the liability as of December 31, 2003, for guarantees under standby letters of credit issued is not
material. Normally, commitments to extend credit and letters of credit have fixed expiration dates or termination clauses, have specific
rates and are for specific purposes. Many of the commitments are expected to expire without being extended; therefore, total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

The following is a summary of outstanding commitments:

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Commitments to grant loans
Fixed rate $ 7,929 $15,180
Variable rate 8,458 4,840

Unfunded commitments of existing loans

Fixed rate $ 8,685 $14,316
Variable rate 35,800 28,681
Standby letters of credit $ 3,496 $ 2,454

NOTE 16 - Contingent Liabilities

On March 19, 2003, a former bank client filed a counterclaim against PeoplesBank in the Court of Common Pleas of Dauphin County,
Pennsylvania, alleging, among other things, that PeoplesBank: breached an implied-in-fact agreement to the claimants related to loans
made to the claimants; intentionally interfered with the claimants’ existing contracts and prospective business relations; and made
certain misrepresentations to the claimants. The claimants allege to have incurred unliquidated losses and other damages in excess of
$3.9 million and exemplary damages in excess of $35,000. The counterclaim was filed in response to the complaint filed by
PeoplesBank whereby PeoplesBank alleges that the claimants defaulted on a promissory note resulting in damages to PeoplesBank in
excess of $1.2 million. Management believes there are substantial defenses to this lawsuit and intends to defend it vigorously. The
impact of the final disposition of this lawsuit cannot be assessed at this time. Counsel believes that the claim may qualify as a “covered
claim” under PeoplesBank’s lender liability insurance policy, which provides coverage for losses in excess of $100,000, and which
should cover the defense and indemnification of PeoplesBank for the claim. The factual discovery process has not been completed.
Although PeoplesBank expects to incur costs in defending these claims, based on the results of its investigation thus far and
preliminary discussions with its lawyers, PeoplesBank currently does not believe the ultimate resolution of the claims will have a
material impact on its financial condition or results of operations.

Also during the first quarter of 2003, PeoplesBank became aware of a civil forfeiture action brought about by the United States
Attorney’s Office. The forfeiture action involves real estate supporting a loan that PeoplesBank made to a customer who was allegedly
involved with criminal activity. PeoplesBank is actively protecting its mortgage interest in the real estate from forfeiture through
available defenses including the “innocent owner defense.”

NOTE 17 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB Statement No. 107, "Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments," requires disclosure of fair value information about
financial instruments, whether or not recognized on the balance sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate that value. In cases where
quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value of expected future cash flows or other
valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates
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NOTE 17 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments (cont’d)

of future cash flows. In that regard, derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and,
in many cases, could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument. Statement No. 107 excludes certain financial
instruments and all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts
presented do not represent the underlying value of the Corporation.

The Corporation used the methods and assumptions below in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments.

Cash and equivalents—The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and equivalents approximate their fair value at
the reporting date.

Investment securities—Fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market prices, where available. When quoted market
prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments.

Loans receivable—For variable-rate and adjustable-rate loans that reprice frequently and show no significant change in credit risk; fair
values were based on carrying values. For fixed-rate loans, fair values were estimated using discounted cash flow analysis using
interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality.

Mortgage servicing rights—The fair value of mortgage servicing rights is based on observable market prices available or the present
value of expected future cash flows when not available.

Accrued interest receivable and payable—The carrying amounts of accrued interest receivable and payable approximate their fair values.
Demand and savings deposits—The carrying amounts of demand and savings deposits approximate their fair values.

Time deposits—The carrying value of time certificates of deposit (CDs) less than $100,000 with an original term of six months or less
and variable rate CDs of less than $100,000 is assumed to approximate market value. The fair value of all other CDs is estimated by
discounting the future cash flows, using rates offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities at the reporting date.

Short-term borrowings—The carrying amount of short-term borrowings approximates the fair value.

Long-term debt—The fair value of long-term debt is estimated by discounting the future cash flows, using rates available for debt of
similar remaining maturities at the reporting date.

Off-balance sheet instruments—The fair value of off-balance sheet instruments, such as commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit, are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements. These amounts were not considered material at
December 31, 2003 and 2002.

An analysis of financial instruments is as follows:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

Carrying Fair  Carrying Fair
(doliars in thousands) Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets ‘ S ey
Cash and equivalents $ 12468 $ 12,408 @ $ 11,120  $ 11,120
Securities, available-for-sale 62,738 62,738 68,863 68,863
Securities, held-to-maturity ' 9,355 10,223 9,357 9,539
Restricted investment in bank stock ‘ 1,976 1,976 1,503 1,503
Loans, held for sale S 2,157 2,183 4,586 4,649
Loans, net of allowance 258,512 263,468 @ 232,445 235,993
Mortgage servicing rights 26 26 52 52
Accrued interest receivable 1,556 556 ’ 1,721 1,721
Financial liabilities o e e
Demand and savings deposits $164,8%6  $164,8% = $151,932  $151,932
Time deposits 139385 142943 ' 140,695 145,272
Short-term borrowings L 6,795 6,795 7,089 7.089
Long-term debt 24,439 25466 16,164 17,663
Accrued interest payable \ 340 340 454 454
Off-balance sheet instruments ¢ ¢ 0 0




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 18 - Condensed Financial Information-Parent Company Only

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 242 $ 181
Securities, held-to-maturity 3,777 3,776
Investment in subsidiaries 29,137 27,697
Premises and equipment 4,305 4,389
Other assets 173 146

Total assets $37,63¢  $36,189
Liabilities
Long-term debt $ 1,793 $ 1,848
Long-term debt with subsidiary, PeoplesBank 2,032 2,092
Other liabilities 20 26

Total liabilities 3,845 3,966
Shareholders’ equity 33,789 32,223

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $37,634 $36,189

Condensed Statements of Income
Years ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Income
Interest from investment securities $ 347 $ 371 $ 394
Dividends from subsidiary, PeoplesBank 1,453 1,263 1,301
Rental income 433 456 445
Other 0 24 0
Total income 2,233 2,114 2,140
Expense
Interest expense on long-term debt 3o1 312 319
Other 623 595 656
Total expense 94 907 975
Income before applicable income tax benefit and
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 1,309 1,207 1,165
Applicable income tax benefit 49 22 46
Income before undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 1,358 1,229 1,211
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 2,074 1,872 1,643
Net income $3,432 $3,101 $2,854
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NOTE 18 - Condensed Financial Information-Parent Company Only (contd)
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $3.432 . $3,101 $2,854

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operations:

Depreciation 73 171 172
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 2,674) (1,872) (1,643)
Gain on sale of premises and equipment and securities , 0 (24) 0
Other, net - 66 25 45)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,597 1,401 1,338

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sales of securities, available-for-sale 0 40 0
Purchase of securities, available-for-sale i 0 8]
| Purchases of premises and equipment (89 {75) (52)
E Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment 0 40 0
| Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 8 5 (33)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of long-term debt (115 (108) (100)
Dividends paid (1,327) (1,262) (1,201)

L Issuance of common stock ¢ 67 27
| Cash paid in lieu of fractional shares 5 4 4)
:; Net cash used in financing activities (1,447) (1,307) (1,278)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 61 99 7

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 181 82 75

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year %242 - % 181 $ 82
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Report of Independent Audisors

Beard Miller
Company u-

Certified Public Antmmams and.’Cmstﬂtans

The Shareholders and Board of Directors
Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc.

York, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe

that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Cudorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

WMWLLP

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
January 9, 2004
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Management’s Discussion of Consolidated Financial Condition & Results of Operations

Management's discussion and analysis of the significant changes
in the results of operations, capital resources and liquidity
presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
for Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. (Codorus Valley or
Corporation), a bank holding company, and its wholly owned
subsidiary, PeoplesBank, A Codorus Valley Company
(PeoplesBank), are provided below. Codorus Valley’s
consolidated financial condition and results of operations consist
almost entirely of PeoplesBank’s tinancial condition and results
of operations. Current performance does not guarantee and may
not be indicative of similar performance in the future.

Forward-looking statements

Management of the Corporation has made forward-looking
statements in this Annual Report. These forward-looking
statements may be subject to risks and uncertainties. Forward-
looking statements include information concerning possible or
assumed future results of operations of the Corporation and its
subsidiaries. When words such as “believes,” “expects,”
“anticipates” or similar expressions occur in this Annual Report,
management is making forward-looking statements.

Shareholders should note that many factors, some of which are
discussed elsewhere in this report and in the documents that
management incorporates by reference, could affect the future
financial results of the Corporation and its subsidiaries, both
individually and collectively, and could cause those results to
differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking
statements contained or incorporated by reference in this Annual
Report. These factors include the following:

° operating, legal and regulatory risks;

o economic, political and competitive forces affecting
banking, securities, asset management and credit services
businesses; and

* the risk that management's analyses of these risks and forces
could be incorrect and/or that the strategies developed to
address them could be unsuccessful.

The Corporation undertakes no obligation to publicly revise or
update these forward-looking statements to reflect events or
circamstances that arise after the date of this report. Readers
should carefully review the risk factors described in other
documents that Codorus Valley files periodically with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

Critical accounting estimates

Disclosure of Codorus Valley’s significant accounting policies is
included in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements of this
Annual Report. Some of these policies are particularly sensitive,
requiring that significant judgments, estimates and assumptions
be made by management. Additional information is contained in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the most sensitive of
these issues, including the provision and allowance for loan
losses, located on pages 38 and 44 of this Annual Report.

Significant estimates are made by management in determining
the allowance for loan losses. Management considers a variety of
factors in establishing this estimate such as current economic
conditions, diversification of the loan portfolio, delinquency
statistics, results of internal loan reviews, financial and
managerial strength of borrowers, adequacy of collateral, if
collateral dependent, or present value of future cash flows and
other relevant factors. Estimates related to the value of collateral
also have a significant impact on whether or not management
continues to accrue income on delinquent loans and on the
amounts at which foreclosed real estate is recorded on the
statement of financial condition. As described in Note 16—
Contingent Liabilities, property collateralizing a loan on
PeoplesBank’s balance sheet is subject to litigation. In
establishing the loan loss allowance, management presumed that
the rights to the property would be protected. If, however,
PeoplesBank’s property rights are not successfully protected the
allowance for loan losses will need to be increased through
provision expense to cover the Joss.

As permitted by SFAS No. 123, the Corporation accounts for
stock-based compensation in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25. Under APB No. 25, no
compensation expense is recognized in the income statement
related to any options granted under the Corporation’s stock
option plans. The pro forma impact of net income and earnings
per share that would occur if compensation expense was
recognized, based on the estimated fair value of the options on the
date of the grant, is disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Corporation has no current plans to
change its method of accounting for stock-based compensation.

Management discussed the development and selection of critical
accounting estimates and related Management Discussion and
Analysis disclosure with the Audit Committee. There were no
material changes made to the critical accounting estimates during
the periods presented within this report.

Overview

The United States Economy

United States economic activity improved in the second half of
2003, stimulated by an end to major combat in Iraq, an increase
in corporate profits and stock prices and federal tax cuts. The
unusually low level of market interest rates was another
important contributing factor. On June 25, 2003, the Federal
Reserve Board (Fed) lowered the federal funds rate one-quarter
percent to 1 percent, its only interest rate change in 2003. The
national prime rate moved in lock step and ended the year at 4
percent. Both benchmark interest rates were at 45-year lows.
After three consecutive years of stock market losses the Dow
Jones Industrial Average closed at 10,454, up 25.3 percent for the
year and the S&P 500 closed at 1,112, up 26.4 percent for the
year. Many economists believe that the financial underpinnings
for long-term economic growth are in place and therefore, are
generally optimistic about 2004. The only missing ingredient for
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a full-blown economic recovery is job growth. At year-end 2003
the unemployment rate was 5.7 percent, well above a 4 percent
“natural” rate of unemployment as defined by the Fed.

Comparatively, on November 6, 2002, the Fed lowered the
federal funds rate one-half percent to 1.25 percent, its only
interest rate change for 2002. The national prime rate moved in
lock step and ended the year at 4.25 percent. The year 2002
ended with consumer confidence declining due to rising
unemployment and a discouraging job outlook. Other factors
constraining economic growth throughout the year included: the
third of three consecutive years of stock market losses, an
occurrence not seen in the past 60 years; high profile accounting
scandals and bankruptcies; lackluster corporate earnings reports;
and anxiety over terrorism and possible military conflict around
the world.

The Financial Services Industry

For the first nine months of 2003, FDIC insured institutions in the
aggregate eamned 12 percent more than in the same period of
2002, based on the most current available information from the
EDIC. In short, it appears that the financial services industry is
poised for a record earnings year. The increase in earnings was
due primarily to increases in noninterest income (gains from the
sale of mortgages) and gains from the sale of securities, and a
decrease in the provision for loan losses. Net interest income
increased only 1.2 percent as yields declined faster than funding
costs placing pressure on net interest margins. Asset quality
continued to improve as both noncurrent loans and charge-offs
declined, and risk-based regulatory capital ratios continued to
strengthen. Commercial banks, an FDIC reporting subset that
totaled 4,166 in number, achieved a return on assets of 1.31
percent and a return on equity of 13.91 percent for the first nine
months of 2003 annualized.

For the fourth consecutive year, bank stocks represented on the
Nasdaq Bank Stock Index outperformed the benchmark S&P 500
Index. The Nasdaq Bank stock index increased 30 percent for
2003, 5 percent for 2002, 13 percent for 2001 and 19 percent for
2000. Comparatively, the S&P 500 Index increased 26 percent
for 2003 and decreased 23 percent for 2002, 13 percent for 2001
and 9 percent for 2000.

Management believes that the financial services industry will
continue to consolidate as a strategy to increase profits and
market share. With an emphasis on strengthening customer
relationships and finding new ways to generate fee income, it is
likely that the industry will increase the diversity of financial
products and services. Management believes that industry
consolidation and product diversification may enhance its
competitive position as a community bank.

Business Strategies

Throughout 2003, management and the board of directors (board)
continued to implement a series of initiatives, as guided by the
Corporation’s long-range strategic plan. One such initiative was
to engage a consulting firm to conduct a company wide

performance evaluation, to include staffing and work processes.
Acting upon the consultant’s recommendations, management
realigned staffing to move toward industry standards and
improved operating efficiency. These benefits, on an annualized
basis, far exceeded the one time consultant’s fee.

The Corporation relies heavily on technological innovation to
provide quality products and services to its customers, contain
costs and remain competitive. Two projects serve as examples.
PeoplesBank began implementing a document imaging system,
which scans and stores documents on an electronic medium, to
increase operational efficiency. Document imaging eliminates
the need to maintain bulky physical files for many paper
documents and provides a means for authorized employees to
quickly access information. Document imaging will be phased in
for selected divisions of the Bank throughout 2004, PeoplesBank
is also in the process of redesigning its website to provide more
information and useful features in a user friendly format. The
change is in response to a growing customer base that prefers the
convenience of using electronic delivery channels to satisfy some
of their financial needs. Management plans to introduce the new
website in the second quarter of 2004.

Management relocated Market Street Financial Services, an
insurance agency acquired in September 2002, to the Codorus
Valley Corporate Center, the Corporation’s headquarters to better
integrate its wealth management marketing efforts with business
banking and consumer banking. Looking ahead, management
plans to implement strategies to grow business banking, increase
fee income and contain operating expense.

Financial Highlights

The Corporation earned $3,432,000 or $1.20 per diluted share for
2003, compared to $3,101,000 or $1.09 per diluted share for
2002, and $2,854,000 or $1.01 per diluted share for 2001. All per
share amounts were adjusted for stock dividends. The $331,000
or 11 percent increase in current period net income was caused
primarily by increases in net interest income and noninterest
income, which more than offset increases in noninterest expense
and federal income tax. Current period net interest income
increased $1,299,000 or 11 percent over 2002 due primarily to
lower funding costs (rate driven). Noninterest income, which
included gains from the sale of mortgages and investment
securities, increased $846,000 or 24 percent over 2002 due
primarily to income from mutual funds, annuity and insurance
sales, and service charges on deposit accounts. Noninterest
expense increased $1,282,000 or 12 percent over 2002 due
primarily to expansion resulting from the acquisition of an
insurance agency in September 2002 and the addition of a full
service financial center in December 2002. Current period
federal income tax increased $494,000 over 2002 due to an
increase in pretax earnings and a decrease in tax credits. A
summary of quarterly earnings for 2003 and 2002 is presented in
Table 13—Summary of Quarterly Financial Data.

Net income for 2002 was $3,101,000, an increase of $247,000 or
9 percent above 2001. The increase was due to an increase in




noninterest income and a decrease in federal income tax, which
more than offset increases in noninterest expense and loan loss
provision. The 42 percent increase in noninterest income was
due primarily to gains from the sale of residential mortgages and
investment securities. The 27 percent decrease in federal income
tax was due to tax credits received by PeoplesBank from an
investment in a real estate partnership that provides low-income
housing. The 7 percent increase in noninterest expense was
caused primarily by operating expenses attributable to corporate
expansion in 2002 and 2001 and normal business growth. The
260 percent increase in the loan loss provision was the result of a
higher level of charge-offs stemming primarily from a loss on
equipment financing contracts. Management believed that the
loss on these contracts was caused in part by external fraud and
sought legal redress along with other defrauded financial
institutions. In December 2003, a negotiated settlement was
finalized and PeoplesBank recovered $350,000.

Annual cash dividends per share, as adjusted, were $.47 for 2003,
compared to $.45 for 2002. Additionally, a 5 percent stock
dividend was paid in 2003 and 2002. Book value per share, as
adjusted, was $11.91 for year-end 2003, compared to $11.38 for
year-end 2002,

Net income as a percentage of average shareholders' equity
(return on equity or ROE), was 10.3 percent for 2003, compared
to 10.1 percent for 2002. Net income as a percentage of average
total assets (return on assets or ROA), was .96 percent for 2003,
compared to .91 percent for 2002.

At December 31, 2003, nonperforming assets as a percentage of
total loans and net foreclosed real estate were approximately .72
percent, compared to 2.55 percent for year-end 2002.
Information regarding nonperforming assets is provided in the
Risk Management section of this report, including Table 8—
Nonperforming Assets. The allowance for loan losses as a
percentage of total loans was .65 percent for year-end 2003 and

Table 1 — Net Interest Income (tax equivalent basis)

2002. Information regarding the allowance is provided in the
Risk Management section of this report, including Tables 9 and
10. Based on a recent evaluation of probable loan-losses and the
current loan portfolio, management believes that the atllowance is
adequate to support losses inherent in the portfolio at December
31, 2003.

Throughout 2003, the Corporation maintained a capital level well
above minimum regulatory quantitative requirements. Currently,
there are three federal regulatory definitions of capital that take
the form of minimum ratios. Table 7—Capital Ratios, shows that
the Corporation and PeoplesBank were well capitalized on
December 31, 2003.

A more detailed analysis of the factors and trends affecting
corporate earnings follows.

Income Statement Analysis

Net Interest Income

The Corporation’s principal source of revenue is net interest
income, the difference between interest income earned on loans
and investment securities, and interest expense incurred on
deposits and borrowed funds. The fluctuation in net interest
income from year to year is caused by changes in interest rates,
volumes and the composition or mix of interest rate sensitive
assets and liabilities.

For analytical purposes, Table 1—Net Interest Income, Table 2—
Rate/Volume Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income and
Table 3—Average Balances and Interest Rates, are presented on
a tax equivalent basis to make it easier to compare taxable and
tax-exempt assets. Income from tax-exempt assets, primarily
loans to or securities issued by state and local governments, is
increased by an amount equivalent to the federal income taxes
which would have been incurred if the income was taxable at the
statutory rate of 34 percent. Unless otherwise noted, the

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 5Yr CGR*
Total interest income $ 19964 $ 20674 $ 22602 $ 21904 $ 20,314 0.0%
Tax equivalent adjustment 238 277 288 249 192 n/a
Adjusted total interest income 20,202 20,951 22,890 22,153 20,506 0.1%
Total interest expense 5,898 8,907 10,871 11,064 9,534 -5.7%

Net interest income $ 13,304 $ 12,044 $ 12,019 $ 11,089 $ 10,972 4.1%
Average eaming assets $322,391  $310,431 $286,777 $264,174  $253,800 6.3%
Average interest bearing liabilities $200,405  $281,062 $257262 $237,537 $228,163 6.5%
Yield on earning assets 6.27% 6.75% 7.98% 8.39% 8.08%
Rate on interest bearing liabilities 2.38% 3.17% 4.23% 4.66% 4.18%

Interest rate spread 3.89% 3.58% 3.75% 3.73% 3.90%

Net yield on average earning assets 4.13% 3.88% 4.19% 4.20% 4.32%
* Compound growth rate (CGR) is the average annual growth over the five-year period which began in 1998.
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Table 2 - Rate/Volume Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income (tax equivalent basis)

Year ended 2003 compared to 2002
December 31, Increase Change due to
(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002  (Decrease) Volume Rate
Interest Income
Interest bearing deposits with banks $ 2 $ 5 $8 3 8 O $
Federal funds sold 62 224 (162) (131) (31
Securities, taxable 2,541 2,693 (152) 404 (556)
Securities, tax-exempt 665 791 (126) (120) (6)
Loans, taxable 16,897 17,216 (319) 949 (1,268)
Loans, tax-exempt 35 22 13 27 (14)
Total interest income 20,202 20,951 (749) 1,127 (1,876)
Interest Expense
Deposits
Interest bearing demand 822 1,201 (379) 147 (526)
Savings 84 131 @7 7 54
Time deposits under $100,000 4,034 5,154 (1,120) (60) (1,060)
Time deposits $100,000 and above 881 1,212 (33D azn (210)
Short-term borrowings 19 10 9 15 (6)
L/ongterm debt 1,058 1,199 141 (35) (106)
Total interest expense 6,898 8,907 (2,009) 47) (1,962)
Net interest income $13,304 $12,044 $1,260 $1,174 $ 86
Year ended 2002 compared to 2001
December 31, Increase Change due to
{dollars in thousands) 2002 2001  (Decrease) Volume Rate
Interest Income
Interest bearing deposits with banks $ 5 $ 13 $ ©® $ 0 $ ®
Federal funds sold 224 562 (338) (108) (230)
Securities, taxable 2,693 2,468 225 1,211 (986)
Securities, tax-exempt 791 827 (36) 30) 6)
Loans, taxable 17,216 18,999 (1,783) 739 (2,522)
Loans, tax-exempt 22 21 1 13 (12)
Total interest income 20,951 22,890 (1,939) 1,825 (3,764)
Interest Expense
Deposits
Interest bearing demand 1,201 1,801 (600) 420 (1,020)
Savings 131 219 (88) (11 an
Time deposits under $100,000 5,154 6,222 (1,068) 95 (1,163)
Time deposits $100,000 and above 1,212 1,462 (250) 137 (387)
Short-term borrowings 10 7 3 34 3H
Long-term debt 1,199 1,160 39 23 16
Total interest expense 8,907 10,871 (1,964) 698 (2,662)
Net interest income $12,044 $12,019 $ 25 $1,127 $(1,102)

Changes which are due to both volume and rate are allocated in proportion to their relationship to the amount of change
attributed directly to volume or rate. Taxable loans include loan fees of $1,082,000 in 2003, $955,000 in 2002, and

$639,000 in 2001.
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discussion that follows is based on interest income and interest
expense as reported in the consolidated statements of income.

Net interest income for 2003 was $13,066,000, an increase of
$1,299,000 or 11 percent above 2002. Net interest income
increased primarily as a result of lower funding costs, which were
rate driven. Earning assets averaged $322 million and yielded
6.27 percent (tax equivalent basis) for 2003 compared to $310
million and 6.75 percent, respectively, for 2002. The increase in
average earning assets occurred primarily in consumer loans,
investment securities and business loans. In spite of an increase

in the volume of assets, interest income was adversely impacted
by low market interest rates, which lowered yields. Interest
income on other earning assets, principally federal funds sold,
decreased due to a decrease in volume as funds were deployed to
loans and investments. Interest bearing liabilities averaged $290
million at an average rate of 2.38 percent for 2003 compared to
$281 million and 3.17 percent, respectively, for 2002. The
increase in the volume of interest bearing liabilities occurred
primarily in demand deposits. For 2003, average time deposits
decreased by 3 percent as rates were managed to lower funding

Table 3 - Average Balances and Interest Rates (tax equivalent basis)

2003 2002 2001
Average Average Average
(dollars in thousands) Balance Imnterest Rate Balance Imnterest Rate Balance Interest Rate
Assets
Interest bearing deposits with banks $ 158 ~.§. 2 127%.% 231 § 5 216%% 239 % 13 544%
Federal funds sold 5,552 62 1iz - 13,336 224 168 16,513 562 3.40
Investment securities
Taxable 64,723 2,541 3.93 56,277 2,693 479 37,748 2,468 6.54
Tax-exempt 9,160 665 7.26 10,803 791 7132 11,204 827 738
Total investment securities 73,883 3,206 4,34 67,080 3484 519 48952 3295 6.73
Loans '
Taxable (1) 242,123 16,897 698 229479 17216 750 220,885 18,999 8.60
Tax-exempt 675 35 5.1 305 22 721 188 21 11.17
Total loans 242,798 16932 697 229784 17,238  7.50 221,073 19,020 8.60
Total earning assets 322,391 20,202 6.27 310431 20951 675 286,777 22,890 7.98
Gther assets (2) 36,323 31,972 25,773
Total assets "$358,714 - .. $342.403 $312,550
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity © i e e
Interest bearing deposits T T e
Interest bearing demand $115,152 § 822 0.71%. $102,581 $ 1,201 1.17% $ 83,172 $ 1,801 2.17%
Savings 14,329 8  05% - 13615 131 096 14,348 219 153
Time deposits nnder $100,000 114,418 4,034 3.53 115,773 5154 445 114,026 6222 546
Time deposits $100,000 and above 26,335 881 3.35 20,243 1,212 4.14 26,737 1,462 547
Total interest bearing deposits - 270,234 5,821 z.15 | 261,212 7,698 295 2387283 9,704 4.07
Short-term borrowings 1,473 19 1.29 | 591 10 1.69 101 7 6.93
Long-term debt 18,698 1,058 5.66 19,259 1,199  6.23 18,878 1,160 6.14
Total interest bearing liabilities 290,405 6,898 2.38 281,062 8,907 3.17 257262 10,871 4.23
Noninterest bearing deposits 31,893 27,690 25,165
Other liabilities 3,200 2,895 1,569
Shareholders' equity 533,216 30,756 28,554
Total liabilities and C .
shareholders’ equity $358,714 - . $342,403 $312,550
Net interest income $13,304 $12,044 $12,019
Interest rate spread 3.89%: 3.58% 3.75%
Net yield on earning assets 4.33% 3.88% 4.19%

(1) Includes loan fees of $1,082,000 in 2003, $955,000 in 2002 and $639,000 in 2001.
(2) Includes average nonaccrual loans of $4,235,000 in 2003, $3,825,000 in 2002, and $1,759,000 in 2001.
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costs. The net yield on earning assets, on a tax equivalent basis,
was 4.13 percent for 2003, compared to 3.88 percent for 2002.
Looking ahead, management believes that PeoplesBank’s asset-
sensitive balance sheet is positioned to benefit from economic
growth and rising market interest rates.

Comparatively, net interest income was $11,767,000 for 2002; an
increase of $36,000 or .3 percent above the $11,731,000 earned in
2001. In spite of a $23.7 million or 8 percent increase in average
earning assets, net interest income was flat for 2002 due to
abnormally low market interest rates, a reflection of the Fed’s
accommodative monetary policy to stimulate a sluggish national
economy. For 2002, low market interest rates lowered yields on
earning assets to a greater degree than they lowered funding costs
on interest bearing liabilities. Interest income from loans for
2002 was also constrained by an increase in nonperforming loans.
Earning assets averaged $310 million and yielded 6.75 percent
(tax equivalent basis) for 2002 compared to $287 million and
7.98 percent, respectively, for 2001. Asset growth occurred
primarily in investment securities and business loans. For the
second consecutive year, deposits experienced strong growth as
investors sought safe haven from widespread price declines in
securities markets. Interest bearing liabilities averaged $281
million at an average rate of 3.17 percent for 2002 compared to
$257 million and 4.23 percent, respectively, for 2001. Funding
was provided primarily by growth in interest bearing demand
deposits. The same factors that constrained net interest income
also constrained the net yield on average earning assets, which
was 3.88 percent for 2002 compared to 4.19 percent for 2001.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for probable loan losses is an estimated expense
charged to earnings to address losses attributable to uncollectible
loans. The provision reflects management's judgement of an
appropriate level for the allowance for loan losses. The Risk
Management section, including Tables 8, 9, and 10, of this report,
provides detailed information about the allowance, provision and
credit risk. For 2003, the provision expense for probable loan loss
was $553,000, compared to $515,000 for 2002 and $143,000 for
2001. The level of expense for 2003 and 2002 reflected an
increase in loan charge-offs, net of recoveries, due largely to a
group of equipment financing contracts acquired from a third
party broker. Management believed that the loss on these
contracts was caused in part by external fraud and sought legal
redress along with other defrauded financial institutions. In
December 2003, a negotiated settlement was finalized and
PeoplesBank recovered $350,000. At December 31, 2003, six
equipment leasing contracts, which totaled $361,000, remained in
PeoplesBank’s portfolio and were performing.

Other factors that impacted the provision for 2002 included an
increase in the nonperforming loan portfolio and continued
concern over the sluggish national and local economies. The
level of expense for 2001 was responsive to loan growth and a
national and local economic slowdown.

Noninterest Income

Total noninterest income for 2003 was $4,380,000, an increase of
$846,000 or 24 percent above 2002. The increase was caused
primarily by increases in income from mutual fund, annuity and
insurance sales, and service charges on deposit accounts. The
$413,000 or 152 percent increase in mutual fund, annuity and
insurance commissions was attributable to an insurance agency
acquired by PeoplesBank in September 2002. The $363,000 or
46 percent increase in service charges on deposit accounts was
attributable to an increase in insufficient funds fees. Insufficient
funds fees increased primarily as a result of a discretionary
overdraft service, implemented by PeoplesBank in June 2003.
Current period gains from the sale of mortgages decreased
$65,000 or 8 percent below 2002. During the third quarter of
2003, long-term market interest rates began to rise, curtailing
mortgage refinancings and lowering expectations for gains in
future periods. Low market interest rates during the first half of
2003 improved securities prices and enabled management to
realize an $87,000 increase in gains from the sale of investment
securities.

Total noninterest income for 2002 was $3,534,000, an increase of
$1,038,000 or 42 percent above 2001. The increase was caused
primarily by increases in gains from the sale of residential
mortgages and investment securities. Gains from the sale of
mortgages were up $613,000 or 386 percent. The increase
reflected a full year of operation for the mortgage banking
division and low market interest rates, which fueled a mortgage
refinance boom. Gains from the sale of securities were $179,000
for 2002. Comparatively, no gains were realized from the sale of
securities in 2001. The $79,000 or 41 percent increase in mutual
fund, annuity and insurance commissions for 2002 was due in
part to an insurance agency acquired by PeoplesBank in
September 2002.

Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense for 2003 was $12,290,000, an increase of
$1,282,000 or 12% above 2002. The increase was the result of
corporate expansion and increases in professional and legal fees
and other expenses. With regard to expansion, the current year
absorbed a full year’s impact of personnel, occupancy and other
expenses associated with the acquisition of an insurance agency in
September 2002 and the addition of a financial center in December
2002. Current year professional and legal expense, principally
consulting fees, increased $245,000 or 108 percent above 2002.
During 2003, management engaged a consulting firm to conduct a
company wide performance evaluation, to include staffing and
work processes. Acting upon the consultant’s recommendations,
management realigned staffing to move toward industry standards
and improved operating efficiency. These benefits, on an
annualized basis, far exceeded the one time consultant’s fee, which
was approximately $275,000. Other expense for 2003 increased
$283,000 or 14 percent above 2002 due primarily to expansion and
normal business growth. An increase in ATM and point-of-sale
processing expenses, driven by an increase in transaction volume,
also contributed to the increase in other expense.




Total noninterest expense for 2002 was $11,008,000, an increase
of $710,000 or 7 percent above 2001. The increase was caused
primarily by increases in personnel and other expense. Personnel
increased $724,000 or 14 percent due primarily to planned
corporate expansion. Year 2002 included the full year cost of
prior year initiatives, including the addition of two financial
centers, a mortgage banking operation and a centralized
telephone call center. Other expense increased $236,000 or 14
percent due to: a $35,000 loss on a fraudulent check, increases in
selected expenses such as memberships and subscriptions,
appraisals, loan expenses, employee training, seminars and
business meetings, insurance, and normal business growth. For
2002, foreclosed real estate expense decreased $168,000 or 70
percent. The prior year reflected a higher level of carrying costs
and loss provisions attributable to a larger portfolio of acquired
properties. Professional and legal expense for 2002 decreased
$80,000 or 26 percent. The prior year reflected a higher level of
expense caused by increased information technology consulting
and services, legal advice for arbitration pertaining to a defective
roof and HVAC system at the Corporation’s headquarters and
consulting advice relative to future growth strategies.

Income Taxes

The provision for federal income tax was $1,171,000 for 2003,
compared to $677,000 for 2002. The $494,000 or 73 percent
increase in tax reflects an increase in pretax income and a
$217,000 decrease in federal tax credits. Tax credits were
maximized in 2002 due to the inclusion of low-income housing
tax credits and historical rehabilitation tax credits from
PeoplesBank’s investment in a low-income housing project.
Historical rehabilitation tax credits are available only in the year
the rehabilitation construction is complete. Details about this real
estate partnership are provided under the Other Assets subheading
within the Balance Sheet Review section of this report.
Comparatively, the provision for 2002 decreased $255,000 or 27
percent below 2001 due to the recognition of tax credits from the
investment in low-income housing.

Balance Sheet Review

Investment Securities

The investment securities portfolio is an interest earning asset,
second in size to the loan portfolio. Investment securities serve
as an important source of revenue, a primary source of liquidity,
and as collateral for public and trust deposits.

On December 31, 2003, securities available-for-sale were $62.7
million reflecting a $6 million decrease below December 31,
2002, as funds were deployed to higher yielding loan portfolios.
Decisions to purchase or sell securities are based on an
assessment of current economic and financial conditions,
including the interest rate environment, liquidity and income
requirements. Securities available-for-sale are limited to high
quality debt instruments as shown in Note 3-—Securities

Available-for-Sale and Held-to-Maturity. Note 3 shows that
unrealized gains far exceed unrealized losses due to low market
interest rates for year-end 2003 and 2002. Table 4—Analysis of
Investment Securities shows that the available-for-sale portfolio
yielded 3.63 percent with an average maturity of 2.9 years on
December 31, 2003, compared to 4.59 percent and 3.1 years,
respectively, on December 31, 2002. The decrease in yield during
the current period was a result of low market interest rates.

On December 31, 2003, securities held-to-maturity were $9.4
million, approximately the same level as year-end 2002. The
held-to-maturity portfolio consisted of fixed rate, long-term
preferred stock (trust preferreds) issued by commercial bank
holding companies. These trust preferreds are substantially junior
subordinated debt, pay interest semi-annually, are callable, and
mature in years 2026-2028. Table 4 shows the portfolio as having
a weighted average yield of 8.43 percent and a weighted average
remaining maturity of 23 years as of December 31, 2003.
Approximately $5.6 million, held by PeoplesBank, are rated
investment grade by a national rating service. The remaining
$3.8 million, held by the Corporation, are either not rated or rated
below investment grade. Generally, investment was limited to
$500,000 per issuer based on an analysis of the issuer’s financial
and strategic history. The trust preferred portfolio, part of a
leverage growth strategy in a prior period, was financed primarily
by borrowing from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh
and a local financial institution.

Loans

On December 31, 2003, total loans were $260 million, an
increase of approximately $26 million or 11 percent above year-
end 2002. Table 5—Loan Portfolio Composition presents the
composition of total loans on a comparative basis for five year-
end periods. The table reflects the Corporation’s emphasis on
commercial lending. At year-end 2003, commercial loans
increased approximately $10 million or 5 percent above year-end
2002. Consumer loans, principally installment loans, increased
$16 million or 32 percent above the prior year-end in response to
an aggressive marketing promotion. During 2003, PeoplesBank’s
mortgage banking staff focused on originating and selling
residential mortgages without retaining servicing rights. These
loans are classified on the balance sheet as loans held for sale. On
December 31, 2003, loans held for sale were $2.2 million
compared to $4.6 million for year-end 2002.

Table 6—Selected Loan Maturities and Interest Rate Sensitivity
shows that, at December 31, 2003, the commercial loan portfolio
was divided almost evenly between $95 million in fixed rate
loans and $96 million in floating or adjustable rate loans. The
50/50 mix was the same on December 31, 2002. Floating rate
loans reprice periodically with changes in either the US Prime
rate or LIBOR as reported in the Wall Street Journal, or
PeoplesBank’s base rate. Adjustable rate loans reprice at annual
intervals based on the US treasury yield curve. Additional loan
information can be found in Note 4—L.oans, and within the Risk
Management section of this report.
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Table 4 - Analysis of Investment Securities (amortized cost basis)
. Corporate Weighted
Us. Us. State & Trust Average
(dollars in thousands) Treasuries Agencies (1) Municipals Preferreds Total Yield (2)
DECEMBER 31, 2003
Available-for-sale
Maturity
Within one year $ 6,865 $ 250 $ 7,115 3.47%
One to five years 45,124 1,859 46,983 311
Five to ten years 1,002 5,214 6,216 6.74
Over ten years 1,294 1,294 7.76
Total $0 $52,991 $8.617 $0 $61,608 3.63%
Average maturity 2.9 years
Held-to-maturity
Maturity
Over ten vears $0 $0 $0 $9.355 $9,355 8.43%
Total $0 $0 $0 $9,355 $9.355 8.43%
Average maturity 23.2 years
DECEMBER 31, 2002
Available-for-sale
Maturity
Within one year $1,004 $ 7,461 $ 8,465 4.50%
One to five years 47,833 3,279 51,112 420
Five to ten years 5,601 5,601 7.25
Over ten years 1,594 1,594 7.98
Total $1,004 $55,294 $10.474 $0 $66,772 4.59%
Average maturity 3.1 years
Held-to-maturity
Maturity
Over ten vears $0 $0 $0 $9,357 $9,357 8.43%
Total $0 $0 $0 $9,357 $9,357 8.43%
Average maturity 24.2 years
DECEMBER 31, 2001
Available-for-sale
Maturity :
Within one year $10,235 $10,235 5.68%
One to five years 15,667 2,676 18,343 5.60
Five to ten years 4,756 4,756 6.92
Over ten years 3,439 3,439 7.89
Total $0 $25,902 $10,871 $0 $36,773 6.01%
Average maturity 3.5 years
Held-to-maturity
Maturity
Over ten years $0 $0 $0 $9,358 $9.358 8.44%
Total $0 $0 %0 $9,358 $9,358 8.44%
Average maturity 25.2 years

(1) U.S. agency mortgage-backed instruments are included in the maturity categories based on average expected life.
(2) Yields on tax-exempt obligations were computed on a tax equivalent basis using a 34% tax rate.




Other Assets

Included in other assets on December 31, 2003, is PeoplesBank’s
$4.8 million investment in two unrelated joint ventures whose
purpose is to provide low cost housing to qualified families.
PeoplesBank’s role in these partnerships is solely as an investor,
whose return is in the form of federal tax credits, which will be
realized over a ten-year period. PeoplesBank holds a 99.99
percent interest and a remaining $2 million investment in the first
joint venture, which was operational in 2001. In the second joint
venture PeoplesBank holds a 73.47 percent interest representing
a $2.8 million investment. The second joint venture involves the
construction and lease of 60 new townhouses. Rain delays have
hampered construction efforts thus far and have delayed
completion of this project. Management anticipates that this
venture will be complete and fully operational in the latter half of
2004 based on a projection provided by the general partner.

Funding

Deposits

Deposits are a principal source of funding for earning assets. On
December 31, 2003, total deposits were $304 million, reflecting
an $11.7 million or 4 percent increase above year-end 2002. The
increase occurred in core deposits such as demand, money market

Table 5 — Loan Portfolioc Composition

and savings accounts. Relatively low certificate of deposit rates,
heavily influenced by low market interest rates, and an improving
stock market likely influenced customers to favor highly liquid
core deposit accounts. Other factors that contributed to the
increase in deposits included the addition of a financial center in
December 2002 and normal business growth. The average rate
paid on interest bearing deposits was 2.15 percent for 2003
compared to 2.95 percent for 2002. The reduction in the rate for
2003 reflected unusually low market interest rates for the second
consecutive year. A comparative breakdown of deposits is
located in Note 8—Deposits.

On December 31, 2003, total certificates of deposit were $139
million, scheduled to mature in the following years: $75 million
in 2004, $31 million in 2003, $18 million in 2006, $11 million in
2007 and $4 million in 2008. At 2003 year-end, the balance of
certificates $100,000 and above was $26 million. Of this total; $7
million mature within three months; $2 million mature after three
months but within six months; $7 million mature after six months
but within twelve months; and the rematning $10 million mature
beyond twelve months.

Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt
To meet day-to-day funding needs, PeoplesBank may borrow
from larger correspondent banks in the form of federal funds

December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2003 % 2002 2001 % 2000 % 1999 %
Commercial, industrial and ,
agricultural $163,676 623 | $161,425 69.0 $152,112 673 $140,388 644  $131,395 634
Real estate - construction and , o
land development 28,147 108 20,596 8.8 21,889 9.7 19,365 8.9 21,956  10.6
Total commercial related loans 191,823  73.7 : 182,021 77.8 174,001  77.0 159,753 733 153,351 74.0
Real estate-residential mortgages 25,134 9.7 24,803 10.6 24799 11.0 30,831 14.2 29815 144
Installment 43,249  16.6 27,136 11.6 26,985  12.0 27,342 125 24,152  11.6
Total consumer related loans 68,383 .. 26.3 51,839 222 51,784 23.0 58,173  26.7 53,967 26.0
Total loans $260,206 1000 = $233,960 100.0 $225,785 100.0  $217,926 100.0  $207,318 100.0

Table 6 — Selected Loan Maturities and Interest Rate Sensitivity
December 31, 2003
Years to Maturity

(dollars in thousands) 1 or less 1to 5 over 5 Total
Commercial, industrial and agricultural $19,062 $37,358 $107,256  $163,676
Real estate-construction and land
development 14,166 10,130 3,851 28,147
Total commercial related $33,228 $47.488 $111,107  $191,823
Fixed interest rates $ 5,370 $18,011  $ 71,968 $ 95,349
Floating or adjustable interest rates 27,858 29477 39,139 96,474
Total commercial related $33,228 $47,488 $111,107 $191,823
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purchased. It also uses credit available at the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Pittsburgh (FHLBP). Interest rates are established daily
based on prevailing market conditions for overnight funds. On
December 31, 2003 and 2002, PeoplesBank had $7 million in
outstanding short-term borrowings.

Long-term debt is a primary funding source for asset growth. On
December 31, 2003, long-term debt was $24.4 million, which
was $8 million above year-end 2002. During 2003, PeoplesBank
borrowed $5 million on two occasions, for a total of $10 million,
from the FHLBP. The first loan was a 10-year amortizing loan
with a fixed interest rate of 3.46 percent. The second loan was a
6-year balloon with a convertible interest rate. For the first three
years the interest rate is fixed at 3.47 percent. This rate will
prevail for the remaining three years unless the FHLBP elects to
convert it to a floating rate, which will be based on a spread to the
3-month LIBOR. A listing of outstanding long-term debt
instruments is provided in Note 9—Short-term Borrowings and
Long-term Debt. Generally, funds for the payment of long-term
debt come from operations and refinancings.

PeoplesBank’s maximum borrowing capacity, as established
quarterly by the FHLBP, was approximately $95 million as of
September 30, 2003, the most recent available date. On
December 31, 2003, PeoplesBank had approximately $29 million
outstanding on its account with the FHLBP at an average rate of
3.85 percent.

Shareholders' Equity and Capital Adequacy

Shareholders' equity, or capital, is a source of funds, which
enables the Corporation to maintain asset growth and absorb
losses. Total shareholders’ equity was $33.8 million on
December 31, 2003, compared to $32.2 million for year-end
2002. The increase in equity was primarily attributable to an
increase in retained earnings from profitable operations.

The Corporation and PeoplesBank are subject to various
regulatory capital requirements administered by banking
regulators that involve quantitative guidelines and qualitative
judgements. Quantitative measures established by regulators
pertain to minimum capital ratios, as set forth in Table 7—Capital
Ratios. Table 7 provides a comparison of the Corporation’s and
PeoplesBank’s risk-based capital ratios and leverage ratios to the
minimum regulatory requirement for the periods indicated.

The Corporation typically pays cash dividends on a quarterly
basis. The board of directors determines the dividend rate after
considering the Corporation's capital requirements, current and
projected net income, and other factors. Annual cash dividends
on a per common share basis, were $.47 for 2003 and $.45 for
2002. All per share amounts were adjusted for stock dividends.

Periodically, the Corporation pays stock dividends as another
means of enhancing long-term shareholder value. In June of
2003 and 2002, the Corporation paid a 5 percent stock dividend.
Payment of the stock dividend in 2003 resulted in the issuance of
134,564 additional common shares. Payment of the stock

By «

dividend in 2002 and 2001 resulted in the issuance of 127,927
and 121,738, respectively, additional common shares. The
weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding, restated for the stock dividend, was 2,833,242 for
2003, 2,828,029 for 2002, and 2,825,804 for 2001.

As previously disclosed in this report, the Corporation maintains
various employee, director and shareholder benefit plans that
could result in the issuance of its common stock. Information
about these plans can be found in Note 10—Shareholders' Equity,
Note 12—Benefit Plans, and Note 13—Stock Option Plans of the
consolidated financial statements.

Capital investments made in earlier periods, as described in
previous SEC filings, and future investments will impact current
and future earnings and capital growth. Possible future
investments may be made to expand the Corporation’s banking
franchise and its technological capabilities and to create or
acquire financial services companies. Management and the board
believe that capital investment, guided by a long range strategic
plan, is necessary to develop an infrastructure to grow market
share and net income over the long-term and is an important
strategy for enhancing long-term shareholder value.

Risk Management

The Corporation’s Risk Management Commitiee meets at least
quarterly and includes members of senior management and an
independent director. The objective of the Committee is to
identify and manage risk inherent in the operations of the
Corporation and its affiliates. The Committee’s risk review is
broad in scope and includes the following risks: credit, interest
rate, liquidity, price, transaction, compliance, strategic and
reputation. One of its primary responsibilities is to develop and
implement formal risk management policies and procedures, and
monitor compliance.

Credit Risk Management

The Corporation emphasizes the management of credit risk. To
support this objective a sound lending policy framework has been
established. Within this framework are six basic policies that
guide the lending process and minimize risk. First, the
Corporation follows detailed written lending policies and
procedures. Second, loan approval authority is granted
commensurate with dollar amount, loan type, level of risk, and
loan officer experience. Third, loan review committees function
at both the senior lending officer level and the board level to
review and authorize loans that exceed preestablished doilar
thresholds and/or meet other criteria. Fourth, the Corporation
directly lends mainly within its primary geographical market
area, York County, Pennsylvania and northern Maryland.
Although this may pose a geographical concentration risk, the
diverse local economy and employee knowledge of customers
minimizes this risk. Fifth, the loan portfolio is diversified to
prevent dependency upon a single customer or small group of
related customers. And sixth, the Corporation does not lend to




foreign countries or persons residing therein.

In addition to a comprehensive lending policy, numerous internal
reviews of the loan and foreclosed real estate portfolios occur
throughout the year. In addition to internal controls, loan
portfolios are reviewed by independent auditors in connection
with their annual financial statement audit, and are examined
periodically by bank regulators.

One component of the internal credit risk review is the
identification and management of industry concentrations. At
year-end 2003, the total loan portfolio included two industry
concentrations that exceeded 10 percent. The commercial real
estate leasing industry accounted for 11.8 percent and the
agricultural industry accounted for 10.3 percent. Comparatively,
these industries were 15.7 percent and 8.5 percent, respectively,
for year-end 2002. Loans to borrowers within these industries are
usually collateralized by real estate.

Nenperforming Assets

Table 8-—Nonperforming Assets, shows asset categories posing
the greatest risk of loss. Management generally places a loan on
nonaccrual status and ceases accruing interest income when loan
payment performance is unsatisfactory and the loan is past due 90
days or more. Loans past due 90 days or more and stili accruing
interest, are contractually past due, but well collateralized and in
the process of collection. The final category, foreclosed real
estate is acquired to satisfy debts owed to PeoplesBank. Table 8
also provides a summary of nonperforming assets and related
ratios. The paragraphs below explain the changes within each
classification on that table for December 31, 2003, compared to
December 31, 2002.

Table 7 — Capital Ratios

For all reporting periods, nonaccrual loans were principally
comprised of collateral dependent commercial loans.
Accordingly, the Corporation recognizes interest income on a
cash basis for these loans. On December 31, 2003, the nonaccrual
loan portfolio was $516,000, significantly below the $5,051,000
reported on December 31, 2002. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the payoff of a $2,635,000 impaired business loan.
The payoff resulted in the full recovery of principal and interest
due on the loan. Additionally, a $1,230,000 business loan was
reclassified from nonaccrual loans to foreclosed real estate.
Details about the reclassification are provided in the foreclosed
real estate section below. No loan loss allowance was established
for either loan because they were adequately collateralized in
management’s judgment. On December 31, 2003, nonaccrual
loans were comprised of fourteen unrelated accounts ranging in
size from $3,000 to $141,000. Accounts within the nonaccrual
loan portfolio vary by industry and are generally collateralized
with real estate assets. Management and the board of directors
evaluate the allowance for loan losses guarterly. Efforts to
modify contractual terms for individual accounts, based on
prevailing market conditions, or liquidate collateral assets, are
proceeding as quickly as potential buyers can be located and legal
constraints permit.

Accruing loans that are contractually past due 90 days or more as
to principal or interest totaled $49,000 on December 31, 2003,
compared to $453,000 on December 31, 2002. Generally, loans
in the past due category are adequately collateralized and in the
process of collection.

Foreclosed real estate, net of allowance, was $1,326,000 on
December 31, 2003, compared to $465,000 on December 31,

Federal Federal Capital®
December 31, Minirmuoem Well at December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 Required Capitalized 2003 2002
Tier 1 risk-based capital 4.00% 6.00%
(as a percentage of risk weighted assets)
Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. consolidated 11.13% 11.32% $32,702 $30,475
PeoplesBank 9,75 9.86 28,048 25,946
Total risk-based capital 8.00% 10.00%
(as a percentage of risk weighted assets)
Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. consolidated 11.71% 11.88% $34,396 $31,990
PeoplesBank 10.34 10.44 29,742 27,461
Leverage 4.00% 5.00%
(Tier 1 capital as a percentage of average total assets)
Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. consolidated 9.15% 8.93% $32,702 $30,475
PeoplesBank 7.9% 7.75 28,048 25,946

* Net unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale, net of taxes, are disregarded for capital ratio computation purposes

in accordance with federal regulatory banking guidelines.
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2002. The increase was attributable to the reclassification of a
$1,230,000 nonaccrual business loan. The reclassification was
based on an in-substance foreclosure presumption since
PeoplesBank controls the real estate collateral, pending the
outcome of an ongoing lawsuit with the borrowers. During
March 2003, the borrowers of the $1,230,000 loan filed a
counterclaim against PeoplesBank described in Note 16—
Contingent Liabilities of the consolidated financial statements.
On December 31, 2003, a loss allowance for foreclosed real estate
assets was unnecessary in management’s judgment because the
fair value supported by independent appraisal, less selling
expenses, exceeded carrying value.

The provision expense for foreclosed real estate, due to declines
in the fair value of individual assets, was $55,000 for 2003,
compared to $30,000 for 2002, and $62,000 for 2001. Efforts to
liquidate foreclosed real estate are proceeding as quickly as
potenttal buyers can be located.

On December 31, 2003, there were approximately $3.9 million in
potential problem loans identified by management. Potential
problem loans consist of loans for which management has serious
doubts as to the ability of the borrower to comply with present
repayment terms, and which were not disclosed in Table 8. A loss
allowance was established for those potential problem loans that
in management’s judgment were inadequately collateralized.
Comparatively, management was monitoring approximately $1.3
million in potential problem loans on December 31, 2002.

Forfeiture Action Related To Mortgaged Property

On March 26, 2003, the United States Attorney’s Office began a
property (in rem) civil forfeiture action, by Complaint in the

Table 8 — Nonperforming Assets

United States District Court for the Middle District of
Pennsylvania, titled United States of America v. Approximately
83 Acres of Real Estate Located in Fairview Township, York
County, Pennsylvania, titled in the name of CCA Associates, Inc.
The real property, which is the subject of the forfeiture action,
serves as the sole collateral for a loan by PeoplesBank to CCA
Associates, Inc. (CCA), the owner or reputed owner of this
property. The loan to CCA, which was guaranteed by a third
party, has a current principal balance of $1,500,000 plus accrued
interest and other fees and costs. The third party guarantor
recently pled guiity and is awaiting sentencing by the federal
government for his involvement in criminal activity.
PeoplesBank intends to protect its mortgage interest in the real
estate from forfeiture through available defenses including the
“innocent owner defense.” As of the date this report was filed, the
loan was current and classified as a performing asset.
Management believes that the primary debt obligation to
PeoplesBank will be satisfied once the property is liquidated and
the proceeds from the sale distributed. Therefore, management
does not believe that the forfeiture action will have a material
adverse impact on the Corporation.

Allowance for Loan Losses

Although the Corporation maintains sound credit policies, certain
loans deteriorate and must be charged off as losses. The
allowance for loan losses is maintained to absorb losses inherent
in the portfolio at December 31, 2003. The allowance is
increased by provisions charged to expense and is reduced by
loan charge-offs, net of recoveries. In analyzing the adequacy of
the allowance, management considers the results of internal and
external credit reviews, past loss experience, changes in the size

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Nonaccrual loans $ 516 $5,051 $1,411 $2,006 $1,892
Accruing loans that are contractually past due

90 days or more as to principal or interest 49 453 164 346 13
Foreclosed real estate, net of reserve 1,326 465 692 2,390 1,385

Total nonperforming assets $1,891 $5,969 $2,267 $4,742 $3,290

Ratios
Nonaccrual loans as a % of total year-end loans 0.20% 2.16% 0.62% 0.92% 091%
Nonperforming assets as a % of total year-end

loans and net foreclosed real estate 0.72% 2.55% 1.00% 2.15% 1.58%
Nonperforming assets as a % of total year-end

stockholders' equity 5.60% 18.52% 7.72% 17.31% 12.97%
Allowance for loan losses as a multiple of

nonaccrual loans 3.3x 3x - 1.3x 1.0x 1.1x




and composition of the loan portfolio, adequacy of collateral,
general economic conditions and the local business outlook.
Determining the level of the allowance for probable loan losses at
any given period is difficult, particularly during deteriorating or
uncertain economic periods. Management must make estimates
using assumptions and information which are often subjective
and fluid. Table 9—Analysis of Allowance for Loan Losses
presents an analysis of the activity in the allowance for loan
losses over a five-year period. Table 10—Allocation of the
Allowance for Loan Losses presents an allocation of the
allowance for loan losses by major loan category. The
unallocated component of the allowance for loan losses
represents probable losses inherent in the portfolio that are not
fully captured in the allocated allowance analyses, such as:
industry concentrations, imprecision in the loan risk evaluation
process and current economic factors.

The allowance was $1,6948,000 or .65 percent of total loans on
December 31, 2003, compared to $1,515,000 and .65 percent,
respectively, on December 31, 2002. The provision expense for
2003 was $553,000, compared to $515,000 for 2002. The
provisicn expense for both years reflected an increase in loan
charge-offs, net of recoveries, compared to prior periods due
largely to a group of equipment financing contracts acquired from
a third party broker. Total charge-offs relating to the equipment
financing contracts amounted to $491,000 for 2003 and $864,000
for 2002. Management believed that the loss on these contracts
was caused in part by external fraud and sought legal redress
along with other defrauded financial institutions. In December
2003, a negotiated settlement was finalized and PeoplesBank

Table @ ~ Analysis of Allowance for Loan Losses

recovered $350,000. As of December 31, 2003, six equipment
leasing contracts, which totaled $361,000, remained in
PeoplesBank’s portfolio and were performing. Based on a recent
evaluation of probable loan losses in the current portfolio,
management believes that the allowance is adequate to support
losses inherent in the loan portfolio on December 31, 2003,

Liquidity

Maintaining adequate liquidity provides the Corporation with the
ability to meet financial obligations to depositors, loan customers,
employees, and shareholders on a timely and cost effective basis
in the normal course of business. Additionally, it provides funds
for growth and business opportunities as they arise. Liquidity is
generated from transactions relating to both the Corporation's
assets and liabilities. The primary sources of asset liquidity are
scheduled investment security maturities and cash inflows, funds
received from customer loan payments, and asset sales. The
primary sources of liability liquidity are deposit growth, short-
term borrowing and long-term debt. Retained earnings from
profitable operations are another source of liquidity. The
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows present the changes in
cash from operating, investing and financing activities. For 2003,
management believes that liquidity was adequate based on its
availability from many sources, including the potential
liquidation of a $63 million portfolio of available-for-sale
securities valued at December 31, 2003 and unused credit with
the FHLBP of approximately $66 million. The Corporation’s
loan-to-deposit ratio was 86 percent for year-end 2003, compared
to 80 percent for year-end 2002.

(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Balance - beginning of year - $1,515 $1,898 $1,967 $2,023  $1,865
Provision charged to operating expense ' 553 515 143 119 225
Loans charged off i
Commercial 684 | 1,100 121 191 23
Real estate-mortgage N ‘ 7 0 15 0
Consumer L. 86 . . 78 111 32 63
Total loans charged off 770 1,185 232 238 86
Recoveries
Commercial 370 274 9 27 12
Real estate-mortgage e 0 0 0 0
Consumer 26 13 11 36 7
Total recoveries - 396 287 20 63 19
Net charge-offs 374 898 212 175 67
Balance - end of year © $1,694 $1,515 $1,898 $1,967 $2,023
Ratios
Net charge-offs to average total loans - 0.15% 0.39% 0.10% 0.08% 0.03%
Allowance for loan losses to total :
loans at year-end 0.65 0.65 0.84 0.90 0.98
Allowance for loan losses to nonaccrual
loans and loans past due 90 days or more 299.8 275 120.5 83.6 106.2




Management’s Discussion of Consolidated Financial Condition & Results of Operations

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Corporation’s financial statements do not reflect various
commitments that are made in the normal course of business,
which may involve some liquidity risk. These commitments
consist mainly of unfunded loans and letters of credit made under
the same standards as on-balance sheet instruments. Financial
instruments with off-balance sheet risk are disclosed in Note 15
of this report and total $64 million at December 31, 2003,
compared to $65 million at December 31, 2002. Normally these
commitments have fixed expiration dates or termination clauses
and are for specific purposes. Accordingly, many of the
commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon
and therefore, generally do not present significant liquidity risk to
the Corporation or PeoplesBank.

Table 10 - Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

Contractual Obligations
Table 11—Contractual Obligations, shows the amount and timing
of payments that are due under long-term contractual obligations.

Market Risk Management

In the normal course of conducting business, the Corporation is
exposed to market risk, principally interest rate risk, through the
operations of its banking subsidiary, PeoplesBank. Interest rate
risk arises from market driven fluctuations in interest rates that
may affect cash flows, income, expense and the values of
financial instruments. PeoplesBank is particularly vulnerable to
changes in the short-term US Prime interest rate (prime rate) and
LIBOR. An Asset-Liability Committee (committee) comprised
of members of senior management manages interest rate risk.

December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
% Total % Total % Total % Total % Totak
(dollars in thousands) Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loeans
Commercial, industrial
and agricultural $1,105 62.9 $ 906 69.0 $1,188 67.3 $1,064 64.4 $972 63.4
Real estate-construction
and land development 80 10.8 61 8.8 55 9.7 357 8.9 196 10.6
Total commercial
related loans 1,185 73.7 967 77.8 1,243 77.0 1,421 73.3 1,168 74.0
Real estate-residential
mortgages 15 9.7 16 10.6 15 11.0 100 14.2 155 14.4
Installment 115 16.6 70 11.6 69 12.0 71 12.5 50 11.6
Total consumer
related loans 130 26.3 86 222 84 23.0 171 26.7 205 26.0
Unallocated 379 n/a 462 n/a 571 n/a 375 n/a 650 n/a
Total $1,694 1000 _ $1,515  100.0 $1,898 100.0 $1,967 100.0 $2,023 100.0
Note: The specific allocation for any particular loan category may be reallocated in the future as risk perceptions change.

Furthermore, the portion allocated to each loan category is not the total amount available for future losses that might occur within
such categories since the total allowance is a general allowance applicable to the entire loan portfolio.

Table 11 — Contractual Obligations

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
(dollars in thousands) Total 1 year years years S years
Long-term debt $ 23,802 $ 896 $ 7,910 $ 1,141 $13,855
Capital lease obligations 637 20 53 74 490
Operating leases 563 66 134 138 225
Time deposits 139,386 75,043 49,154 15,189 0
Total $164,388 $76,025 $57,251 $16,542 $14,570

B 10




The committee’s objective is t0 maximize net interest income
within acceptable levels of liquidity and interest rate risk and
within capital adequacy constraints. PeoplesBank is not subject
to foreign currency or commodity price risk, nor does it own any
trading assets.

The committee manages interest rate risk primarily through
sensitivity analysis. Asset-liability management simulation
software (ALM model) is used to model and measure the
potential loss in future net income based on hypothetical changes
in interest rates. Interest rate forecasts are supplied by a national
forecasting service and integrated with the ALM model. The
Corporation's policy limit for the maximum negative impact on
net income is 10 percent over a twelve-month period. This policy
limit is tested periodically by measuring the change in net income
from a baseline scenario where interest rates are held constant, to
a high rate scenario (gradual 200 basis point increase in prime and
fed funds rates), a low rate scenarto (gradual 200 basis point
decrease in prime and fed funds rates) and a most likely scenario
{defined by a forecasting service) over the future twelve month
period. Important ALM modeling assumptions include: the use
of contractual cash flows; varying levels of prepayments for loans
and mortgage-backed securities; stability of noninterest income
and expense; reinvestment of repriceable cash flows in the same
type of asset or liability; and constant product rate spreads,
determined at the balance sheet date, over the twelve-month
measurement period. The ALM model also includes significant
balance sheet characteristics such as rate caps and floors.

Table 12 — Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Corporation performed a simulation on its balance sheet for
December 31, 2003 and 2002. The results of that point-in-time
analysis are shown in Table 12—Interest Rate Sensitivity. On
both dates the Corporation’s balance sheet was asset sensitive in
response to abnormally low market interest rates engineered by
the Federal Reserve Bank to stimulate domestic economic
growth. Asset sensitivity means that loan and investment assets
will reprice to a greater and faster degree than the deposits and
debt that fund them. Therefore, if market interest rates increase,
earnings will increase. Conversely, if market interest rates
decrease, earnings will decrease. Generally, the financial services
industry has experienced increased liquidity, as deposit customers
sought safe haven from capital markets, loan customers.
refinanced, bond issuers called bonds and mortgage-backed
securities prepaid faster than scheduled. On December 31, 2003
and 2002, the hypothetical 200 basis point reduction in market
interest rates (low rate scenario) portrays a decline in net income
of 10.6 percent and 10.8 percent, respectively, slightly exceeding
management’s 10 percent policy guideline. Management
believes that the Corporation’s balance sheet is positioned to
benefit from an economic recovery and rising market interest
rates.

Measurement of interest rate risk requires many assumptions.
These assumptions are inherently uncertain and, as a result, the
model cannot precisely estimate net interest income or precisely
predict the impact of higher or lower rates on net income. Actual
results may differ from simulated results due to many factors

Change in interest Forecasted Change in
rates (basis points) interest rate net income
over 12 mos scenario $000's %
at December 31, 2003
‘ +200 High 241 58
& Flat (baseline) (L] 8.0
=280 Low (438) (10.6)
+88 Most Iikely 17 0.4
at December 31, 2002
+200 High 217 6.0
0 Flat (baseline) 0 0.0
-200 Low 393) (10.8)
+118 Most likely 94 2.6
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including: timing of cashflows, magnitude and frequency of
interest rate changes, customer behavior, changes in market
conditions, and management strategies.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The majority of assets and liabilities of a financial institution are
monetary in nature and therefore differ greatly from most
commercial and industrial companies that have significant
investments in fixed assets or inventories. However, inflation
may impact the growth of total assets in the banking industry and
the resulting need to increase equity capital at higher than normal
rates in order to maintain an appropriate equity-to-assets ratio.
Inflation may also significantly affect noninterest expenses,
which tend to rise during periods of general inflation. The level
of inflation can be measured by the change in the Consumer Price
Index (CPI) for all urban consumers (December vs. December).
The change in the CPI for 2003 was 1.9 percent, compared to 2.4
percent for 2002, and 1.6 percent for 2001.

Management believes that the most significant impact on
financial results is the Corporation's ability to react to changes in
market interest rates. As discussed previously, management
strives to structure the balance sheet to increase net interest

Table 13 — Summary of Quarterly Financial Data

income by managing interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities
to reprice in response to changes in market interest rates.
Additionally, management is focused on increasing fee income, an
income component less sensitive to changes in market interest rates.

Other Risks

More grand acts of terrorism in the United States of America, or
in other countries, could erode consumer and business confidence
and disrupt commerce, resulting in a prolonged economic
recession. A prolonged economic recession could have a material
adverse effect on liquidity, capital resources or results of
operations of Codorus Valley.

Periodically, federal and state legislation is proposed that could
result in additional regulation of, or restrictions on, the business
of Codorus Valley and its subsidiaries. Management is not aware
of any current specific recommendations by regulatory
authorities or proposed legislation, which, if they were
implemented, would have a material adverse effect upon the
liquidity, capital resources, or results of operations. Although the
general cost of compliance with numerous and multiple federal
and state laws and regulations does have, and in the future may
have, a negative impact on Codorus Valley’s results of operations.

2003 2002

(dollars in thousands, Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest income $4,803 $5,284 $4,914 $4,873 $5,179 $5,227 $5,110 $5,158
Interest expense 1,661 1,702 1,752 1,783 2,009 2,140 2,342 2,416
Net interest income 3,232 3,582 3,162 3,090 3,170 3,087 2,768 2,742
Provision for loan losses 78 254 187 37 445 0 50 20
Noninterest income 891 962 787 767 733 630 611 609
Noninterest expense 3,148 2,891 3,178 3.073 2,977 2,717 2,627 2,687
Net operating income 900 1,399 584 747 481 1,000 702 644
Gains from sales of securities 0 0 99 167 0 107 0 72
Gains, other 70 155 245 237 . 312 136 82 242
Pretax income 970 1,554 928 1,151 793 1,243 784 958
Provision for income taxes 235 431 215 290 110 271 125 171
Net income $ 735 $1,123 $ 713 $ 861 $ 683 $ 972 $ 659 $ 787
Net income per share, basic $0.26 $0.40 $0.25 $0.30 $0.24 $0.34 $0.23 $0.29
Net income per share, diluted $0.25 $0.39 $0.25 $0.31 ‘ $0.24 $0.34 $0.23 $0.28

Note: Net income per share was adjusted for stock dividends.
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Corporate Information

Corporate Profile

Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. is a Pennsylvania business incorporated in 1986, which became a bank holding company on March 2,
1987, under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956. PeoplesBank, A Codorus Valley Company, is its wholly owned banking
subsidiary and SYC Realty Co., Inc. is its wholly owned nonbank subsidiary. Organized in 1934, PeoplesBank offers a full range of
business and consumer banking services through eleven financial centers throughout York County, Pennsylvania. It also offers wealth
management and real estate services. The deposits of PeoplesBank are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) to the maximum extent provided by law. In 1998, PeoplesBank created SYC Settlement Services, Inc., as a wholly owned
subsidiary, to provide real estate settlement services. In 1999, PeoplesBank created SYC Insurance Services, Inc., as a wholly owned
subsidiary, to sell nondeposit investment products.

Headquarters 4
Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. is headquartered at the Codorus Valley Corporate Center, 105 Leader Heights Road, York, PA 17403.

Stock, Dividend and Broker Information
Outstanding common stock of Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc. is quoted under the symbol CVLY on the Nasdaq National Market
System. At December 31, 2003, there were approximately 964 shareholders of record.

Prices presented below are based on the close price as quoted on the Nasdaq National Market System. Cash dividends paid for the
most recent eight quarters are also provided in the table below. Cash dividends per share (rounded) and market prices are adjusted for
stock dividends. ‘

2003 2002

Dividends Dividends
Quarter  High Low per share High Low per share
First $15.57 $1390 - - $0.114.. | $14.24 $12.25 $0.109
Second 16.49 14.95 $0.114 15.24 12.38 0.109
Third 18.00 15.53 $0.120 16.00 14.36 0.114
Fourth 2110 1781 $0.120 15.48 13.43 0.114
For further information, we refer you to the following market makers in our common stock:
Boenning & Scattergood, Inc. Ferris, Baker Watts, Inc.
800-842-8928 410-468-2749

Notice of Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held on Tuesday, May 18, 2004 at 9:00 a.m. Eastern Time, at the Codorus Valley
Corporate Center, 105 Leader Heights Road, York, PA 17403.

Transfer Agent
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., PO. Box 64854, St. Paul, MN 55164-0854
800-468-9716

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan
Information regarding the Corporation's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan may be obtained by calling 800-468-9716
or by writing to: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., PC. Box 64854, St. Paul, MN 55164-0854

Form 10-K Request

The form 10-X Report filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) may be obtained, without charge, as follows:

Via the Internet: www.peoplesbanknet.com, select Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc., then select the Securities and Exchange
Commission link, or visit the SEC website at www.sec.gov/edgarhp.htm

Via written request to: Chief Financial Cfficer, Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc., P.O. Box 2887, York, PA 17405-2887.
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